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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Affected by the uncertainty of the economic market of the
US and Europe, the Company recorded a loss of HK$133.5
million for the year ended 30 June 2011 as compared
to a profit of HK$47.6 million for the corresponding
period ended 30 June 2010. The loss of HK$133.5
million suffered was mainly due to losses resulting from a
revaluation deficit of HK$51.2 million (non-cash item) on
the Group’s investment properties in Panama and a smaller
revaluation surplus gained from Severn Villa Properties
as compared to the corresponding period ended 30 June
2010 and the total loss on BVI Project (as defined below)
incurred for the year ended 30 June 2011, amounting to
HK$77.8 million which includes the share of loss of the
BVI Project of HK$27.7 million (non-cash item) as well
as the imputed interest expenses on the promissory note
issued by Quorum to the Group of HK$50.1 million. The
imputed interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss
as a result of measurement of the interest-free promissory
note at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, where the promissory note is not expected to be
realised in a short term period. No matter that we remain
optimistic about the performance of the properties market
both globally and locally in Hong Kong in the forthcoming
financial year.

During an auction conducted by Christie’s Hong Kong
Limited in November 2010, the Group sold three
investment assets and recognised a total net profit of
approximately HK$14.8 million.

On completion of the disposal of the entire share
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
Applied Electronics Limited (“AEL") which held
investment properties, details of which were stated in
our announcement dated 14 December 2010 and our
circular dated 11 January 2011, for a total consideration
of RMB15 million (approximately HK$17.5 million) in
March 2011, the Group recognised a loss on disposal
of approximately of HK$6.6 million. Nevertheless, the
Company believes that the disposal transaction, as
explained in our announcement dated 14 December 2010
and our circular dated 11 January 2011, was in the best
interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.
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During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Company has
incurred substantial administrative expenses and legal fees
of over HK$10 million defending litigation proceedings
(the "Actions”) commenced by a former director, Ms Mimi
Wong Kar Gee (“Ms. Wong") since her re-designation to a
non-executive director on June 2010. The Directors are of
the view that the Group has proper and valid defences to
the claims by Ms. Wong, and accordingly, no provision for
commitment/loss has been accounted for in the accounts.
The Directors will continue to protect the interests of the
Group and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
will continue to keep its Shareholders updated about the
progress of the Actions.

In May 2011 as disclosed in our announcement dated 19
May 2011, the Company received the correspondence
from Interlsle Holdings Ltd. (“Interlsle”), our joint venture
partner in a project (the "BVI Project”) located at Beef
Island, Tortola, the British Virgin Islands (the “Real
Property”), as well as an appraisal of the Real Property
as at 21 March 2011 conducted by CB Richard Ellis. The
obligation of Interlsle under a joint venture agreement
entered into between, amongst others, Interlsle and
Applied Toys Limited (the “Agreement”) to settle the final
installment of the deferred purchase price of US$10.5
million by 9 April 2011 (the "Deferred Purchase Price”)
was not fulfilled and Interlsle’s ownership interest in
Quorum Island (BVI) Limited (“Quorum”) was to be
reduced from 50% as originally contemplated under
the Agreement to less than 20% (the “Dilution”). The
Company will keep the Shareholders updated with
information in respect of the Dilution. Following the
receipt of Interlsle’s letter, on 16 August 2011 Quorum
was pleased to receive the order from the Court of Appeal
of the British Virgin Islands (the “Court of Appeal”)
which found that Hans Creek an area located in the
vicinity of the Real Property was not validly declared to
be a protected area, and by extension, the decision of
the Chief Minister and Minister of Planning of the British
Virgin Islands (the “Minister”) to approve the Group’s
proposed development of the BVI Project granted to
Quorum in January 2007, was not illegal. As a result, the
Minster's planning approval of the development of the
BVI Project remains valid (the “Reinstatement of Minister's
Approval”). The Board of the Company believes that the
Reinstatement of Minister's Approval might positively aid
the obtaining of the necessary funding by Quorum for the
development of the BVI Project subject to the prevailing
economic climate and conditions of the property markets.

We also believe that our Group’s investment properties
and overseas projects will bring satisfactory returns to the
Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

RESULTS

The Group's consolidated loss for the year ended 30
June 2011 amounted to approximately HK$133.5 million
as compared with the profit HK$47.6 million for the
corresponding period ended 30 June 2010. Such loss
was mainly due to losses resulting from a revaluation
deficit of HK$51.2 million (non-cash item) on the Group’s
investment properties in Panama and a smaller revaluation
surplus gained from Severn Villa Properties as compared
to the corresponding period ended 30 June 2010 and
the total loss on BVI Project (as defined below) incurred
for the year ended 30 June 2011, amounting to HK$77.8
million which includes the share of loss of the BVI Project
of HK$27.7 million (non-cash item) as well as the imputed
interest expenses on the promissory note issued by
Quorum to the Group of HK$50.1 million. The imputed
interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss as a result
of measurement of the interest-free promissory note at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, where
the promissory note is not expected to be realised in a
short term period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
provided the following security for the banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Company.

(a) Pledge of investment properties of the Group with
a carrying amount of HK$230,000,000 (2010:
HK$220,000,000);

(b) All monies earned by the above pledged investment
properties of the Group. During the year, rental
income of HK$1,146,677 was generated from these
investment properties (2010: HK$121,975);

(c) Property insurance on the pledged investment
properties executed by the Group in favour of
the bank. At the end of the reporting period, the
property insurance coverage was amounting to
HK$9,350,000 (2010: HK$8,500,000); and

(d) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee
given by the Company in respect of all amounts
owing by the subsidiary to the bank under the
facility.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

()

Resort and Property Development
BVI Project

The Group entered into the Agreement for the
formation of a joint venture with Interlsle to
develop the BVI Project comprising a land with an
area of approximately 660 acres (approximately
267 hectares or 28.75 million square feet) in
August 2006. In May 2011, the Company received
correspondence from Interlsle, as well as an
appraisal of the Real Property as at 21 March 2011
conducted by CB Richard Ellis. The obligation of
Interlsle under the Agreement to settle the final
installment of the Deferred Purchase Price was
not fulfilled and Interlsle’s ownership interest in
Quorum was to be subject to the Dilution. The
Company will keep the Shareholders updated with
information in respect of the Dilution. Following
the receipt of Interlsle’s letter on 16 August 2011,
Quorum was pleased to receive the order from the
Court of Appeal which found that Hans Creek an
area located in the vicinity of the Real Property
was not validly declared to be a protected area,
and by extension, the decision of the Minister to
approve the Group’s proposed development of the
BVI Project granted to Quorum in January 2007,
was not illegal. As a result, the Minster’s planning
approval of the development of the BVI Project
remains valid. The Board of the Company believes
that the Reinstatement of Minister’s Approval
might positively aid the obtaining of the necessary
funding by Quorum for the development of the BVI
Project subject to the prevailing economic climate
and conditions of the property markets.

The BVI Project is envisioned to be master-planned
resort community which will include: a five-star
luxury resort hotel with approximately 200 hotel
and condo-hotel units, destination spa, signature
restaurant and conference rooms; a first-class
marina with approximately 135 slips, including
facilities for 15 mega-yachts over 80 feet; a golf
course and up to 600 high-end residential units
including townhomes, beachfront residences,
ocean-view villas, and secluded mountain estate
homes; as well a unique artisan and retail village at
Trellis Bay.

Chairman’s Statement
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(ii)

SHm

Panama Project

The Panama Project comprises two pieces of land:
(i) a piece of land of approximately 494 hectares
(approximately 1,223 acres or 53.27 million square
feet) named Playa Grande in Boca Chica, District of
San Lorenzo, Province of Chiriqui in Panama (the
“Panama Land”); and (ii) a hot spring with a land
size of approximately 9 hectares (approximately
22.3 acres or 0.97 million square feet) in the
Borough of San Felix, Province of Chiriqui in
Panama (the “Hot Spring Property”). The Panama
Project is wholly owned by the Group and was
acquired by the Group in mid of 2007. After the
acquisition of the Panama Project, the Group has
developed a master plan for the project, devised
golf course routing plans, conducted market
studies, environmental studies, IRR studies, and
various other studies and tests on the project.

The Panama Project is planned to feature a luxury
hotel, a marina facility and a marina village, a 18-
hole signature golf course, a branded fractional
ownership club, branded ocean-view villas and
branded residential lots. After completion of the
Panama Project, 2,000 residential units in the
various branded residential lots will be offered for
sale.

The Management has worked on the relevant plans
of the sub-lot region of the Panama Land with the
professionals and architects for the submission to
the relevant authorities of Panama. The Group will
replicate the business model of the BVI Project,
and partner with renowned experts in the resort
development industry to develop the Panama
Project. Alternatively, if a suitably attractive offer is
made by potential buyers, the Board may consider
the disposal of the Panama Land and/or the Hot
Spring Property.

Property Investment and Holding

After the completion of the disposal of the entire
share capital in AEL by the Group in March 2011,
which held investment properties (details of
which were stated in our announcement dated 14
December 2010 and our circular dated 11 January
2011) and except the Panama Project, the Group’s
remaining investment properties, held mainly in
Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China and
Canada, generated rental income for the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2011.
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(iii) Investment Holding

During the year, the Group sold three investment
assets and recognised a total net profit of
approximately HK$14.8 million. The Group may
continue to invest in any potential investment,
investment assets or financial products in the good
yield market subject to the surplus fund of the
Group.

(iv)  Financing

On 10 December 2010, the Company placed
convertible notes (with a coupon of 8%) in
aggregate principal amount of HK$41,760,000 with
a maturity term of three years. The holders of the
convertible notes may convert the whole or part of
the convertible notes into shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.24 per share, subject to adjustments.
The Company also has the right at anytime after
9 December 2011 to redeem the whole or any
principal amount of the convertible notes (please
refer to note 38 of this Annual Report for more
details).

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertainty of the global economies which
may continuously affect our Group’s overseas projects both
in BVI and Panama, the management believes that the
Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong and Panama
and the developments in the BVI will bring in satisfactory
returns to the Group in the near future.

Based on our outlook of the resort and property sector
and investment property market, we will continue to be
strategically allied with high-quality architects, designers,
and resort developers to develop future resort projects
for development or for sale and seek other appropriate
property investment opportunities in the Asia region.

PORTAL OPERATION

The Group has established a corporate website
www.applieddev.com. The website serves as an electronic
channel to enhance relationships between the Company
and the shareholders by informing them of the most
updated corporate and investor information.

Chairman’s Statement
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s total net assets value and
borrowings amount to HK$459.4 million and HK$116.7
million respectively, representing a gearing ratio of 25.4%
as compared to 9.7% of the corresponding year. As at 30
June 2011, the Group’s current assets value and current
liabilities excluding bank borrowings over 1 year (based on
scheduled payment date) amounted to HK$77.9 million
and HK$8.8 million respectively, representing a current
ratio of 8.9 times. In addition, the majority of the Group’s
assets and liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong and
US dollars, and hence the exposure to foreign exchange
risk were insignificant to the Group.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group does not engage in interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expenses, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instrument will be used.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed a total of 8
(2010: 16) full-time employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
basis of performance of individual employees and are
reviewed annually. The Group also provides medical
insurance coverage and provident fund scheme (as the
case may be) to its employees depending on the location
of such employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all of
the staff and business partners for their hard work and
dedication.

By order of the Board

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 September 2011
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus, aged 29, Chairman, holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a MBA degree
both from University of Chicago. He joined the Company
in 2005. He is principally responsible for the overall
management and business of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, aged 56, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a Master of Science degree in Electronics
and Computer Science from the University of California
at Berkeley, USA and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He joined
the Group in 1997. He has over 32 years experience
in investment, manufacturing, banking and real estate
development. He was previously affiliated with several
international banks, an electronics manufacturing
company, a US based investment holding company and a
HK public listed real estate development company.

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 43, Independent Non-
executive Director, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He joined the Group in 2005. Mr. Lam is
currently the Managing Director and Head of Corporate
Finance of an investment bank and has around 17 years
experience in investment banking as well as around 4
years experience in accounting and auditing. He is also
the independent non-executive director of Cheuk Nang
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 131), China Fortune
Group Limited (stock code: 290), International Resources
Enterprise Limited (formerly known as China Sonangol
Resources Enterprise Limited) (stock code: 1229), Pearl
Oriental Innovation Limited (stock code: 632), and
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821),
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited; and China Railway Logistics Limited
(stock code: 8089) and Trasy Gold Ex Limited (stock code:
8063), companies listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition,
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSEEREAERE

Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive director of
China Oriental Culture Group Limited (formerly known
as ZZNode Technologies Company Limited) (stock code:
2371), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from 29 January 2008
to 5 October 2010 and Finet Group Limited (stock code:
8317) and Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019),
companies listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from 5 August
2009 to 24 January 2011 and from 17 November 2010 to
16 May 2011, respectively.

Mr. Su Ru Jia, aged 61. Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a MBA degree from International East-West
University of America (GEBIBIPR R PE 5 X E) and graduated
from Nanjing Senior Army Command College® (Fd &5
WPEFIEIEEPT) and South China Normal University (3
FIRMEE A Z2) in 1983 and 1989 respectively. He has been
appointed as a Committee Member of The Communist
Party of Committee of Shenzhens (FEZFITEZEE), a
Committee Member of Political of Association Shenzhen
Committees (B i &I THEEEEZ) and a Deputy Director
of Main Branch of Economic Technology Committee® (4%
BRI ZE2IERBMEEM since 2007, before that,
he was appointed as a Deputy Chief of Shenzhen Trade
Development Councils CRIIE S5 EBEIBK) and a
Secretary of The Communist Party of Committee of
Shenzhen Unit Work Committees (/1 %I Th Z &% Y
BRI THEZEEER) in 1998 and 2001 respectively. He
has worked for the Community State of PRC for over 42
years. During the course of working for the military of
PRC from the Deputy Squad Leader lastly promoted to the
Commander of the military, he achieved three Third-class
merit reward and was praised his excellent performance
over 20 times. He has an extensive experience in the
economic and property development of PRC, especially
management in the PRC State Committee.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, aged 62, President -
Overseas Development, holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Electrical Engineering from the University of lllinois and
a MBA degree from the University of Chicago, USA. In
April 1976, he founded the Group and had contributed to
the Group for over 35 years. On 11 April 2011, Mr. Hung
was appointed as “Overseas Development President” of
the Group. Pursuant to the short term contract between
the Company and Mr. Hung, it will expire on 10 October
2011.

Ms. Ng Kit Ling, Tess, aged 46, Financial Controller
and also the Company Secretary. She joined the Group
in 2005. She has over 25 years experience in finance and
accounting matters of listed group companies. She is a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in United
Kingdom and holds a Master Degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report
EERREE

The directors have a pleasure to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in resort and property
development; property and investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
and a jointly controlled entity of the Group are set out in
notes 17 and 40, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income statement on page 35.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group did not have any purchases and suppliers
during the year and at the end of the reporting period,
respectively. During the year, the aggregate revenue
attributable to the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group were 81% and 31% of the total
revenue of the Group, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
of the Company which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company had any beneficial interest in the share capital
of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements during the year in the investment

properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 30 June
2011 are set out on page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in share capital of
the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the
Company available for distribution to shareholders as
at 30 June 2011 amounted to HK$153,658,000 (2010:
HK$179,505,000).
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EERREE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (Chairman)
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
(Managing Director (resigned on 6 April 2011))

Independent non-executive directors:
Lun Tsan Kau

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Su Ru Jia

Non-executive director:

Wong Kar Gee, Mimi
(retired in Annual General Meeting held on
14 January 2011)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, that Mr. Hung Kai Mau,
Marcus and Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham shall retire at the
Annual General Meeting and they will be eligible to offer
themselves for re-election. All remaining directors will
continue in office. The terms of office of the independent
non-executive directors are the periods up to their
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws.

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract in writing with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries is/was a party and in which a director of
the Company has/had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisting/subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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LITIGATIONS WITH A FORMER DIRECTOR,
MS. WONG KAR GEE, MIMI

Reference is made to the Company’s annual report 2010
and the Company’s announcements dated 23 February
2011, 25 February 2011 and 31 August 2011 in relation
to the updated outstanding litigations (“Actions”)
commenced against the Group by Ms Wong Kar Gee,
Mimi (“Ms. Wong"”) (a former director who retired in
the last annual general meeting of the Company on 14
January 2011) as follows:

High Court Action No. 1175/2010

The Company has commenced action against Ms. Wong
for the return of certain assets of the Company. Ms. Wong
had since the commencement of the action returned
some of the assets claimed. There are a few more items
remaining in Ms. Wong’'s possession. The Company has
yet to take any further steps in this action.

High Court Miscellaneous Proceedings Nos. 243/2011
and 522/2011

The above actions have been consolidated pursuant to a
court order. In summary, Ms. Wong, a former director of
the Company, commenced action against the Company
and its subsidiary Severn Villa Limited (“SVL") and sought
inter alia declaration that certain properties, car park
spaces and garden registered under the name of SVL
at 3 Severn Road in which she is currently residing (the
“Property”) belong to her beneficially.

At the same time, the Company and SVL also claimed
against Ms. Wong for vacant possession of the Property
and unpaid licence fees for remaining at the Property until
the recovery of possession of the Property by the Company
and SVL. The actions have been fixed for hearing in
October 2011,

High Court Action No. 424/2011 (transferred from
Labour Tribunal Claim No. LBTC 326/2011)

Ms. Wong originally commenced the claim in the
Labour Tribunal against the Company for a total sum
of approximately HK$3,492,000. After a preliminary
hearing, the Labour Tribunal transferred the claim to
the High Court in February 2011. In the High Court
proceedings, Ms. Wong reduced her claim to approximate
HK$1,533,000. The court proceedings is still in an early
stage and the trial is unlikely to take place this year.
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Directors’ Report
EERREE

The Directors are of the view that the Group has proper
and valid defences to the claims by Ms. Wong, and
accordingly, no provision for commitment/loss has been
accounted for in the accounts. The Directors will continue
to protect the interests of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Company will continue to keep its
Shareholders updated about the progress of the Actions.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded
in the register of members required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Number of ordinary shares

HEBER¥AE
Held by Approximate
Beneficial controlled % of
Name of directors owner corporation Total shareholding
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Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 2,960,000 - 2,960,000 0.35%
AT
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 333,912,701 75,022,883 408,935,584 48.78%
HEAE (Note 1)
(resigned on 6 April 2011) (M)
(RZZT——FMANBEEE)
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 10,010,056 - 10,010,056 1.19%
FTHRHE (Note 2)
(retired in Annual General Meeting (K3E2)

held on 14 January 2011)
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Notes:

(1) These shares were held by the following companies:

Malcolm Trading Inc.
Jaytime Overseas Ltd.

Malcolm Trading Inc. and Jaytime Overseas Ltd. are wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

(2) On 11 August 2011, the Company received a fax copy of
Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi (“Ms. Wong"). It represents that
as at 30 June 2011 Ms. Wong is the beneficial owner of
10,010,056 shares in the Company and has an interest in
shares of the Company of a total of 405,655,584 shares
("those shares”). This is on the basis that those shares in
the Company are stated to be held in trust for a family
trust with her as one of the beneficiaries. Ms. Wong'’s claim
is not reflected in the register of members of the Company
and is disputed by Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held in trust for the Company
by certain directors as at 30 June 2011, none of the
directors, chief executives or their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company adopted by the Company
on 16 September 2002 (the “Scheme”). Particulars of
the Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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The following table discloses movements of the share
options of the Company granted to the Directors during
the year:

FEARHE  KFARREZEZARERK
BT -

Lapsed or
Outstanding Granted Exercised forfeited
Date of share  at beginning during during during Outstanding Exercise
Name of directors options granted  of the year the year the year the year at30.6.2011  price
R=B--%
BRE TEERBZ FEE@®  KA=tH
L BTRE BRESH FERT EEAE HIEE KM TEE
HKS
BT
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 21 October 2009 8,400,000 - - (8,400,000) - 0.29
i ~TThE
+A-+-H
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 21 October 2009 22,700,000 - - (22,700,000) - 0.29
(resigned on 6 April 2011)
HEE (RZF——F —ZENE
MARAEE) +A-t-H
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 21 October 2009 13,330,000 - - (13,330,000) - 029
(retired in Annual General
Meeting held on 14 January
2011)
IFE(RZ2——% —TTNE
—ATmBETZ +A=t-H
REEFAS HRE)
Total for directors 44,430,000 - - (44,430,000) -
BYTES
Notes: BRE -
(1 The exercise period of the share options of the Company (1) 2EA FEE 2 BIRETEH A HISF

granted to all of the above directors are five years from
the date of grant and there is no minimum vesting period
for the share options of the Company.

(2) The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant of share options is
HK$0.29.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18
had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above under the
heading “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” in respect of certain directors, the
register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO discloses no
person as having a notifiable interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June
2011.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased 580,000
ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of HK$109,565. All of the
shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value
of the cancelled shares of HK$5,800 was credited to
capital redemption reserve and the relevant aggregate
consideration of HK$109,565 was paid out from the
Company’s retained profits. Details of the repurchases are
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Total number

of the

ordinary
Month of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
the repurchases repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
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ESgHEE

The purchases were made for the benefit of the
shareholders as a whole as they enhanced the net asset
value and/or earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions during the year in related parties
transactions are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statement.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable
and other donations (2010: HK$824,448).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2011.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars

CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 September 2011
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Corporate Governance Repor‘r

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2011.

On 6 April 2011, the Company felt regret to receive Mr.
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond’s resignation of the Managing
Director as well as his directorship with our Company. The
Board herewith highly appreciate and thank for Mr. Hung’s
unconditional and high valuable contribution to our Group
since 1986.

The Company has complied with the provisions (“Code
Provisions”) in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) throughout the financial year. After specific
enquiries of each of the Directors, the Directors confirm
that they have complied with the standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has always committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders and uphold accountability,
transparency and responsibility of the Company.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.
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e 5 S P A
ﬁéﬁ%/ﬂﬁhﬁ%
THE BOARD BEEg
0] Board Composition (i) ESERKE
Executive Directors HiTEE
1. Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 1. LU
(Chairman and son of Mr. Hung Kin Sang, (F)E R iEAE 54 A
Raymond and Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi) FTEHELAL 757 F)
2. Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 2. HEA A
(Managing Director (resigned on (EFH4CHE
6 April 2011) and father of (R-ZFE——1F
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus) P9 AN HEHT) &
HAERTE L2 HE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BB ITEE
1. Mr. Lun Tsan Kau 1. BRI E
2. Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham 2. N e
3. Mr SuRuJia 3. EORfERAE
Non-executive Director HHITEF
1. Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 1. FR®EL T
(retired in Annual General Meeting (R=ZFE——1F
held on 14 January 2011 and mother — H+PIHET >
of Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus) RERHFAZ FRITR
HAERTE AL Z B 3E)
Save as stated above, there is no relationship BrIA FEEIN  REENE 2

(including financial, business, family or other
material relevant relationship(s)), among members
of the Board.
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(ii)

Corporate Governance Repor‘r

Responsibility

The business and affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) is under the direction of and
vested with the Board pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board is the
ultimate decision-making body of the Group except
in respect of matters reserved for shareholders. The
Board is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Group and for
the preparation of the accounts of the Company.
The Board retains overall responsibility for all major
matters of the Group, which include approving
and monitoring all policy matters, managing
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, entering into material
transactions (especially any transactions which may
involve a conflict of interest within the Board),
providing financial information, appointing directors
of the Company and other significant financial
and operational matters. Certain of that authority
is delegated by the Board to the management in
order to enable the management to develop and
implement the Group’s strategic planning and
operations, and to conduct the Group’s day-to-
day activities. The Board diligently monitors the
management’s performance in that regard but
responsibility for conducting the Group’s daily
operations rests with the management.

The role of the Group’s Chairman is separate
from that of the Group’s Managing Director
and their respective responsibilities are set out
by the Board in the Code of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for day-to-day
management of the business of the Group. The
Chairman provides leadership for the Board to
ensure that the Board acts diligently and in the
best interests of the Group and that meetings are
planned and conducted effectively. The Chairman
is also responsible for approving the agenda for
each Board meeting, taking into account, where
appropriate, matters proposed by the directors of
the Company (”Directors”). The Chairman also
actively encourages the Directors to make full
contributions and actively participate in the Board's
affairs.

(ii)
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TtEREABRES

During the year, Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
("Mr. R Hung"”) resigned his directorship with
the Company on 6 April 2011 as well as his role
of Managing Director. The Company has not yet
appointed a new director to fill his vacancy of
Managing Director. Nevertheless, Mr. R Hung’s
resignation does not constitute any material impact
of our Group’s operation as Mr. R Hung promised
to serve our Group as a contracted overseas
investment president pursuant to a short term
contract dated 8 April 2011 between the Company
and Mr. R Hung and it will expire on 10 October
2011. Before the expiry of this short term contract,
the Board will continuously negotiate with Mr. R
Hung in respect of the possibility of him continuing
to serve as our Group's contracted overseas
investment president.

The Board established two Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. The Company reviews the said
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to its needs. The Board
and the Board committees work under the well-
established corporate governance practices in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Each Director of the Company is provided,
upon reasonable request made to the Board,
with means, at the Company's expense, to seek
independent professional advice in furtherance of
his/her duties if necessary. The Independent Non-
executive Directors are high calibre executives or
professionals with relevant industry experience
who provide their skills and expertise to the Board.
Their brief biographical details are on pages 11
to 13 of this Annual Report. They ensure that the
Board and Company maintain high standards in
its financial and other mandatory reportings as
well as providing adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Company as a whole.
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(iii)

(iv)

Corporate Governance Report

The Board regularly reviews its composition and
structure to ensure appropriate levels of expertise
and independence are attained and maintained.

Appointment and Succession Planning of the
Directors

The Company has not established a nomination
committee. The Company follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment and removal of Directors. All Directors
who are appointed to fill casual vacancies are
subject to re-election at the first general meeting
after their appointments by the Board. All Directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and may be re-elected or be
taken into account in determining the number
of Directors to retire as provided by the Bye-law.
Certain Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation as aforesaid.

Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors of
the Company (the “Securities Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the standard set out in Model
Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Securities Code, a Director must,
among other things, notify the Chairman or his/her
alternates in writing of the specific purpose of a
proposed dealing in the securities of the Company
and receive a dated written acknowledgement
before any dealing. All Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Securities Code throughout the year.

(iii)

(iv)
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CERERARES

(v) The attendance record of the Directors at the
regular meetings of the Board during the reporting
period is as follows:

(v) EREHHE SREBEFLHEEFRS
ERBOIRAOT

No. of meetings attended/held

Name i HESBRE A"
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus LIS 26/26
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mENEE 23/26
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRESEE 21/26
Mr. Su Ru Jia BRORESRE 19/26
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond A A

(resigned on 6 April 2011) (R=ZZE——FMAXBFT) 15/17
Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi FREZ+

(retired in Annual General Meeting (R=—E2—F—A+mA

held on 14 January 2011) BOZRRAFAG LRE) 10/12

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20
April 2005 and includes a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Hung Kai Mau,
Marcus (appointed on 6 April 2011 to replace Mr. Hung
Kin Sang, Raymond who resigned on 6 April 2011) and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lun
Tsan Kau (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
regarding the Company’s policy and structure in relation to
the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee also
reviews the assessment criteria and remuneration policies
and terms of employment of all Executive, Non-executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors and senior
management of the Company with reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.
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The attendance record of the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee during the reporting period for
each of the committee members is as follows:

CEERRES

EREHE SRZEEXNBZHES
IRBIRIT

No. of meetings attended/held

Name H®E HESRAE A
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRE R & 4/4
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mEMEE 4/4
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus AT

(appointed on 6 April 2011) (RZZE——FMHANBEZE) 2/2
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond HEERE

(resigned on 6 April 2011) (R=ZZ——FMANBET) 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and
Mr. Su Ru Jia. All of them have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing
and assessing senior management and external auditors
of the Company, the internal control system and external
auditing process and findings, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, Listing Rules and
statutory compliance. The committee members of the
Audit Committee also meet to discuss matters relating to
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting (including the interim financial report for the
first six-months of each financial year).

The attendance record of the meetings of the Audit
Committee during the reporting period for each of the
committee members is as follows:

Name i

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau WEREE
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MERE I HE
Mr. Su Ru Jia BomfELE

The main duties of the Audit Committee include making
proposals and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors and
their terms of engagement and termination as well as
monitoring the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditors and recommending appropriate actions if
required.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2011, payments made
to Mazars CPA Limited, the external auditors of the
Company, for providing audit and non-audit services were
approximately HK$500,000 and HK$145,160 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As the Board believes that a well-designed system of
internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to ensure reliability of financial reporting as
well as compliance with the relevant rules and regulations,
a system of internal control has been set up, with the
intention of preventing material misstatements and losses
and to manage, and, where possible, eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems to achieve the Group’s
objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
internal control, financial control and risk management
system and monitors their effectiveness from time to time,
and reviews the scope and frequency of audit reviews
according to risk assessment. Special reviews may also be
performed on areas of concern identified by management
or the Audit Committee from time to time.

During the reporting year, the Board through Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the functions of
financial, operation, compliance and risk management.
The review showed that the internal control system
operated, on the whole, satisfactorily. The Board also
through Audit Committee, where necessary, initiated
necessary improvements and reinforcements to the
internal control system.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting
are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. Amendments
to the Listing Rules which came into force on 1 January
2009 have made it mandatory for all voting at meetings
of shareholders of the Company to be taken by way of
poll. The Company has taken steps to ensure compliance
with the requirements about voting by poll and
arrangements have been made for the voting of each of
the resolutions being put to the meetings to be dealt with
by means of poll. At general meetings the Board and the
respective committee members of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee are responsible for answering
questions raised by the shareholders.

In order to provide detailed and up-to-date information
to our shareholders, the Company has a range of
communication channels to ensure its shareholders are
kept well-informed. These comprise communication by
way of general meetings, annual reports, public notices,
announcements and circulars.

The Company seeks to enhance communications and
positive relationships with investors by maintaining regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them up-to-date about the business, operations
and development of the Group, and by replying to any
enquiries from investors appropriately. Investors are
welcome to make enquiries to the Company at its office
in Hong Kong or directly visit the Company's website
(www.applieddev.com) for any updated corporate and
financial information.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Board's knowledge of the public float is based on
information publicly available to the Company. As at the
date of this report, over 25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company was held by the public.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

The Company believes that good corporate governance
reflects a high quality of management and operations
of the Group’s operations and business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and
effective allocation of resources which in turn, protect the
interests of the shareholders. The management recognises
the importance of good corporate governance practices
and will use its best endeavours to maintain, strengthen
and improve the standard and quality of the Group's
corporate governance.
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BN B SREE

MBEMAZARS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
APPLIED DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 130, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30th June, 2011,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

32Em

Mazars CPA LIMITED

35 35 ot o 5 97 A R
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
v T R 1 85 P R R S 448
Tel FE&E ¢ (852) 2909 5555

Fax 411 © (852) 2810 0032

Email FEH# : info@mazars.com.hk
Website #1E : www.mazars.com.hk
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
AV R iR e

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 30th June, 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements concerning the uncertainty relating to
the possible outcome of certain court proceedings lodged
by a former director against the Group for claiming that
certain investment properties, which have been included
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements, are
actually held by a subsidiary as a trustee for the former
director. The Group denied the former director’s claim. The
directors have sought legal advice from lawyers and are
of the view that the Group has proper and valid defences
to the former director’s claim. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments
that would result from the outcome of the lawsuit. We
consider that appropriate disclosures have been made and
our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

We also draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements concerning the adoption of the
going concern basis on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$6,610,000. The validity of the going concern basis
depends on the Group’s future profitable operation and
the bank’s continuing finance. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from a failure to attain future profitable operations.
We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made
and our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6th September, 2011

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Turnover
Other revenue
Other income

Net (decrease) increase in fair values
of investment properties

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Administrative expenses

Share-based payments

Imputed interest expenses on promissory
note receivable from a jointly
controlled entity

Finance costs

Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

(Loss) Profit before tax

Taxation

(Loss) Profit for the year, attributable
to equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Net gain on fair value changes of
available-for-sale investments

Exchange difference realised on disposal
of subsidiaries

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations

Surplus on properties revaluation

Deferred tax arising from revaluation surplus

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss) income
for the year, attributable to equity
holders of the Company

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Diluted

Year ended 30th June, 2011 %
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2011 2010
—g-—-5 -T-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT THET
4,649 4,847
1,036 2
15,365 11,397
(40,905) 64,452
(6.628)
(27,776) (23,344)
- (5,332)
(50,143) -
(3.400) (462)
(27,676) 308
(135,478) 51,868
1,993 (4,295)
(133,485) 47,573
- 93
24 -
12 -
1,444 -
(119) -
1,361 93
(132,124) 47,666

(15.91) HK cents

5.67 HK cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre MR

At30th®une, 2011+ —F =Tt rwa= 1= H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Other assets
Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Trade and other receivables
Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Amount due from a director
Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity
Prepaid lease payments
— current portion
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Other payables

Tax payables

Amounts due to directors
Secured bank borrowings
Obligations under finance leases

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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14
15

22
16

17

18
19

20

21

23

24

18
25

26

23
27
28

2011 2010
g5 -T-2F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH FET
377,600 437,088
1,815 5,174
121,457 -
1,045 1,546

- 27,676

1,591 1,632
220 220
503,728 473,336
29,309 -
3,685 3,817

- 171,600

- 146
16,388 16,383
40 40
28,516 2,403
77,938 194,389
204 -
5,188 3,347

- 26

- 15,317
79,156 57,000
- 21
84,548 75,711
(6,610) 118,678
497,118 592,014
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

are MR

At 30th June, 2011 =E——F~B=+H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to

130 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board

of Directors on 6th September 2011 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman
4
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HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
8,383 8,389
450,974 579,356
459,357 587,745
37,510 -
251 4,269
37,761 4,269
497,118 592,014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

'—\_—|/_\ A= N\ / ,#}_g,%
meEmEER
Year ended 30th June, 2011 H#E-—FT——F NA=1+HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LEREREARE
Share Investment Capital
Share  Treasury Share ~ options  Convertible  revaluation Other ~ redemption Capital Distributable ~ Translation  Retained
capital shares  premium  reserve note reserve reserve  reserve reserve  reserve resenve  reserve profits Total
78R &%

BE  EERG  ROEE BRARR RANE RHEGGRE AMGR  WORR  BAER TONER  BEGR  REM ag
HCYOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  KKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKFOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKFODD  HKSO00

Tén  TEn Tén Tén  TER  TEL AR TR TR TR TR TER Tin
(Note ) — (Note)  (Note3)  (Noted]  (Note5  (Note6)  (Note?)  (Note8)  (Note9)

() (Ma3) (e (B5)  (Bde) (7)) (RR9)
At 1st July, 2009 NELF-B 873 (8.911) 45 - - 493) 8,551 11,577 204610 939! b1 26,214 534747
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - - - - - 41573 41573
Other comprehensive income REERANE
Net gain on fair value changes EEERENTE
of avalable-forsale investments VAL e - - - - - 3 - - - - - - L
Total comprehensive income FEERANAEE
for the year - - - - - 93 - - - - - 4151 47,666
Cancellation of treasury shares HHEERRR (383) 8911 - - - - - m - - - (8911) -
Fquitysetted share-based payments S BEERE L - - - 533 - - - - - - - - 530
(383) 8911 - 5332 - - - 33 - - - 8,911) 533
At 30th June, 2010 R-%-357A=1H 8,389 - 45 5332 - (400) 8,551 11920 204610 9391 b1 254876 587,745
At 1st July, 2010 RE-TELR-A 8,389 - 45 533 - (400) 8,551 1190 204610 93,961 61 254,876 587,145
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - - - - - (133485)  (133.485)
Other comprehensive income Ef2ENA
Realised on disposal of subsidiaris ~ HEHBATBEE - - - - - - - - - - U - U
Eichange difference arsing BREENZHER
on transletion of foreign operations £ - - - - - - - - - - 1 - 1
Surpls on property revalation RER B8 - - - - - - 1444 - - - - - 1444
Deferted tax aising from EfiRBREY
revaluation surplus EithE - - - - - - (19 - - - - - (119
Total other comprehensive income ~ £ 2EHAAE - - - - - - 135 - - - 3 - 1,361
Total comprehensive income FEERANAEE
for the year - - - - - - 1325 - - - 36 (133485 (132124)
Transfer to retained profits on disposal i3
of subsidiaries f - - - - - - (8,551) - - (93,961) - 105 -
Transfer to retained profits BhiEzi/
on cancellationforfeiture EHEREAT
of share options - - - (5332) - - - - - - - 5332 -
Repurchase of own shares BERR () - - - - - - § - - - (110) (10)
Issue o convertole notes BTBREE - - - - 3846 - - - - - - - 3846
(6) - - (5.332) 3,846 - (8.551) ] - (93,961) EE (/ML) 3736
At 30th June, 2011 “5--ERAZTR 8383 - 5 - 3,846 (400) 1325 11926 204610 - 9 m15 459357
Notes: B 5
(1 Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds (1 R & ERZROFMEHNERBAR
or consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares AIBITHRNDEBBEEEE - ZRO G
over their par value. The application of the share premium BEERENEARZHIGIFERELRES
account is governed by Section 46(2) of the Companies 46(2)8 (K1E85]) FRESE °

Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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Consolidated Statement of Chonges iN Equi’ry

Year ended 30th June, 2011 %

Share options reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted under the Company's share option
scheme which are yet to be exercised. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire, be
cancelled or forfeited.

Convertible note reserve represents the equity component
(conversion rights) of the convertible notes issued.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of available-
for-sale investments that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of the amounts reclassified to
profit or loss when those investments are disposed of or
are determined to be impaired.

Other reserve represents the fair value adjustment at
the date of transfer of property, plant and equipment to
investment properties. Following the disposal of certain
investment properties previously transferred from property,
plant and equipment, the revaluation surplus attributable
to these investment properties included in the other
reserve was transferred to retained profits during the year
ended 30th June, 2011.

Capital redemption reserve has been set up and is dealt
with on repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s
own shares. The application of the capital redemption
reserve is governed by Section 42A of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Capital reserve represents contributed surplus arising
from the cancellation of share premium account of the
Company pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
Company on 22nd February, 1999 and waivers of loans
from minority shareholders of subsidiaries of the Company
during the years ended 30th June, 2006 and 2008.

Distributable reserve arose from the cancellation of share
capital and share premium account of a subsidiary of the
Company, Applied Electronics Limited (“AEL"), pursuant
to a scheme of arrangement which became effective
on 10th January, 1989. Following the disposal of AEL in
March 2011,
retained profits during the year ended 30th June, 2011.

the distributable reserve was transferred to

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\T\/\Iﬁimbiﬁ

Year ended 30th June, 2011 &=

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Dividend income
Finance costs

Gain on disposal of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of other assets
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Imputed interest expenses
on promissory note receivable
from a jointly controlled entity
Interest income
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Net decrease (increase) in fair values
of investment properties

Net decrease in fair values of financial

assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Release of prepaid lease payments
Share-based payments
Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity
Write-off of property, plant
and equipment

Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Other payables
Amount due from/to a related party

Cash used in operating activities

Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

400 m
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Note
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B 5 I H fth & Y K IE
ZREEE
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ZRFEFRD
FRERTEM A E R
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JE 1 — R 2L R4
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FEU / FEfS AR A+
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EEBACEE
FrSM
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2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(135,478) 51,868
1,150 1,659
(12) 3)
3,400 462
(374)
(14,843) (2,196)
- 196
50,143 -
(1,036) ()
6,628 -
40,905 (64,452)
1,341 -
41 40
- 5,332
27,676 (308)
3 _
(20,456) (7,404)
132 (2,433)
1,841 253
(3,735) 3,429
(22,218) (6,155)
(26) -
(22,244) (6,155)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to investment properties
Advance to a jointly controlled entity

Dividend received
Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
net of direct costs
Proceeds from disposal of other assets
Purchase of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance charges paid in respect
of obligations under finance leases

Interest on convertible notes

Interest on bank borrowings

(Repayment of) Advances from
directors, net

New bank borrowings raised

Issue of convertible notes, net of
issue costs

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Repurchase of own shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

Year ended 30th June, 2011 %
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Note
B3
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2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(1,805) (2,525)
(5) (6)
12 3
1,036 2
8,732 -
15,640 -
15,344 2,496
(39,008) -
(350) (206)
(404) (236)
(1 (10)
(1,857) -
(722) (452)
(11,436) 10,333
79,156 4,000
40,536

(57,000) (4,000)
(21) (250)
(110) -
48,545 9,621
25,897 3,230
2,403 (827)
12 -
28,312 2,403
28,516 2,403
(204) -
28,312 2,403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS E N
Year ended 30th June, 2011 B2 ——F NA=1+HLFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is
the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The Group is principally engaged in
resort and property development, and property and
investment holding. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company and a jointly controlled
entity of the Group are set out in notes 40 and 17
to these financial statements respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

vy | |

—REE

ARBH/ RN B REZMAL
ZEHRRARAR  EERMHER
BHAaXZAERAR (X5
Frl) £ o KRR ZEMMHER
ik & F EEE B BN AFR
[RBIEF] PR -

RNiFEMBRETIABTES
BILNBARRZYEER 2T
B -

AR —RIEBER AR - K
SEFEREERNEYEE
R MERKEERER - K
RAEEWNB AR R —HLREE
#l A A2 E 5 9 RIS B S R
RMFFA0K17 ©

FEEEE
HeBH

R BHELRBE LY
BREER (BB BEREE
) EABREEBEMAE
(IBEEGEIAE]) BIMAME
EAEER B MRS 2L
AAGER ([&HBEER])
LB RHEEEEERMN S
ARAN A RFBLR ARG
MEEREMRE - Ar M5
BENTTRBEMARZMAR
RACEF EMRADTEHR
Al]) HEREERE



Applied Development Holdings Limited % HZ %&£ M AR A = » Annual Report 2011 %

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 & & _i——i/\ﬂjatiﬁ

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2010 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of certain new/
revised HKFRSs effective from the current year
that are relevant to the Group. A summary of the
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

HKFRS 3 (Revised): Business Combinations/
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 with amendments
to HKFRS 3 (Revised)

The revised Standard introduces a number of major
changes including the following:

. acquisition-related transaction costs, other
than share and debt issue costs, to be
expensed as incurred;

o existing interest in the acquiree to be
remeasured at fair value, with the gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss, upon
subsequent changes in ownership interests;

o non-controlling interests in the acquiree to
be measured at either fair value, or at their
proportionate interest in the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquiree;

o contingent consideration to be recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date; and

o goodwill to be measured at the excess of the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of the acquirer’s interest in the acquiree and
the amount of any non-controlling interests
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed from the acquisition.
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39 or HKAS 37, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

The Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 contain
amendments to clarify the measurement of the fair
value of an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination and to permit the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has
a similar useful economic life.

In accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in HKFRS 3 (Revised), the Group has
applied these new policies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after 1st July, 2010. These changes in accounting
policies do not have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 27 (Revised): Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

The revised Standard requires accounting for
changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary,
while maintaining control, to be recognised as an
equity transaction. It also requires, when the Group
loses control of a subsidiary, any interest retained in
the former subsidiary to be remeasured at fair value
with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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The revised Standard also requires that total
comprehensive income is attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and non-controlling
interests even if it results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. This revised
Standard affects the Group’s accounting policy for
total comprehensive income attributable to the non-
controlling interests. These changes in accounting
policies do not have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HK — Int 5: Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The Interpretation concludes that, if a term loan
(i.e. a loan that is repayable on a specified date
or in installments over a specified period, usually
in excess of one year) has a demand clause (i.e. a
clause that gives the lender an overriding right to
demand repayment without notice or with notice
period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion)
in its terms, the loan shall be classified by the
borrower as a current liability in the statement of
financial position. Similarly, the amounts repayable
under such a term loan shall be classified in the
earliest time bracket in the contractual maturity
analysis as required to be disclosed under
HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The
adoption of this Interpretation has resulted in the
reclassification of a current year's long-term bank
loan from non-current liabilities to current liabilities
and making necessary changes to the relevant
disclosures accordingly but has not resulted in the
Group reclassifying its term loans in prior year.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17: Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

The Interpretation requires that, when an entity
distributes assets other than cash as dividends to
its shareholders, the dividends should be measured
at the fair value of the assets distributed with
any difference between the amount of dividends
and the previous carrying amount of the assets
distributed being recognised in profit or loss
when the entity settles the dividends payable. The
adoption of this interpretation did not have an
impact on the financials statements during the year.
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Amendments to HKFRS 2: Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

The Amendments incorporate the guidance in
HK(IFRIC) — Int 8: Scope of HKFRS 2 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 11: HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions. In addition to this, the Amendments
provide further guidance on the accounting for
share-based payment transactions among group
entities. It states that the entity receiving the goods
or services should recognise the transaction as an
equity-settled share-based transaction only if:

o the awards granted are its own equity
instruments; or

o it has no obligation to settle the transaction.

In all other circumstances, the entity should
measure the transaction as a cash-settled share-
based payment. The adoption of the Amendments
does not have a significant impact to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 17: Classification of leases
of land and buildings included in Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

The Amendments remove the specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to
eliminate inconsistency with the general guidance
on lease classification. As a result, leases of land
should be classified as either finance or operating
using the general principles of HKAS 17. The
amendment shall be applied retrospectively to
existing leases if the necessary information is
available at the inception of the lease. Otherwise
land leases should be reassessed on the date of
adoption of the Amendments. There is no leasehold
land of the Group that qualifies for finance lease
classification, hence, no prepaid lease payment has
been reclassified to property, plant and equipment
or investment properties.
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Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 contain
improvements to a number of Standards aiming to
remove inconsistencies and clarify wording in the
Standards.

. Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised): Current/
non-current classification of convertible
instruments

The Amendments clarify that the terms of a
liability that could result, at any time, in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments
at the option of the counterparty do not
affect its classification.

o Amendments to HKAS 7: Classification of
expenditures on unrecognised assets

The Amendments provide that only
expenditure that results in a recognised
asset can be classified as a cash flow from
investing activities.

o Amendments to HKFRS 5: Disclosures of
non-current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations

The Amendments clarify that the disclosures
required in respect of non-current assets or
disposal groups classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations are only those set
out in HKFRS 5. The disclosure requirements
of other HKFRSs only apply if specifically
required for such non-current assets or
discontinued operations.
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. Amendments to HKAS 36: Unit of

accounting for goodwill impairment test

The Amendments clarify that the largest unit
permitted for allocating goodwill acquired
in a business combination for impairment
testing is an operating segment, as defined
in HKFRS 8 before aggregation for reporting
purposes.

The adoption of the Improvements does not have a
significant impact to the Group.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 contain
improvements to the following Standards effective
from the current year that are relevant to the
Group.

o Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised):
Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-
based payment awards

The Amendments clarify that the application
guidance in HKFRS 3 (Revised) applies to
all unexpired share-based payment awards
that form part of a business combination,
regardless of whether the acquirer is obliged
to replace the award.

3 Amendments to HKAS 27 (Revised):
Transition requirement for amendments
arising as a result of HKAS 27 (Revised)

The Amendments clarify that the
consequential amendments to HKAS 21,
HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 in relation to the loss
of significant influence or joint control in the
investments should be applied prospectively.
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The adoption of the Improvements does not have a
significant impact to the Group.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with the principles
applicable to a going concern basis. The
applicability of these principles is dependent upon
the Group’s future profitable operation and the
bank’s continuing finance in the future in view of
the excess of current liabilities over current assets.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these financial statements is historical cost, except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30th June each year. The financial
statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is
lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed
subsidiary is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the parent had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary is accounted
for as a financial asset, associate, jointly controlled
entity or others as appropriate from the date when
control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that
are held by owner or lessee under finance lease to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use, properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties and properties that are held
under operating lease, which satisfy the definition
of investment property and carry at fair value.
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Investment properties are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value is recognised
in the profit and loss. The fair value of investment
property is based on a valuation by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit and loss during the year in which they
are incurred.

Properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses
incurred during the development period.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
less accumulated impairment losses of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, over their estimated
useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of
buildings the term of the leases
or 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements  20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 33'/3%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, whereas shorter, the terms of
the relevant leases.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in
the profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire fixed-term interests in lessee-occupied land.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis
to the profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets are antiques held for long-term
investment purposes and are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which
venturers have joint control and none of the
venturers has unilateral control over the economic
activity of the entity are referred to as a jointly
controlled entity.

The Group’s investment in jointly controlled
entity is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The consolidated statement of
comprehensive income includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of the jointly
controlled entity for the year. The consolidated
statement of financial position includes the Group's
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entity and also goodwill.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to
the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case, the full amount of losses is recognised.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, which are financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and
loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives
that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.
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Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or
(i) they are part of a group of financial assets and/
or financial liabilities that are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives
that would need to be separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset, other than those
at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
fair value of available-for-sale equity instrument
after recognition of impairment loss is recognised in
equity. Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-
sale debt instruments are reversed through profit or
loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury shares

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited (“Applied
Investment”) became a subsidiary of the Company
in 1995. On consolidation, the shares in the
Company held by Applied Investment have been
accounted for using the treasury stock method
whereby equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company is reduced by the carrying amount
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment at the date when Applied Investment
became a subsidiary of the Company. On disposal
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment, consideration received is recognised
directly in equity. The difference between the sale
consideration and the carrying amount of the
shares disposed of is recognised in retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to determine whether the property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, investments in
antiques, subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity
have suffered an impairment loss or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that
exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as
a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of issue costs.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for a similar note that does not have
a conversion option; and this amount is carried
as a liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.
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The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included
in the convertible note reserve within shareholders’
equity, net of issue costs. The value of the
conversion option carried in equity is not changed
in subsequent years. When the conversion option
is exercised, the balance of the convertible note
reserve is transferred to share premium account or
other appropriate reserve. When the conversion
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance remained in the convertible note reserve
is transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are
first recognised. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, with reference to fair value of
consideration received or receivable, and on the
following bases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as finance lease obligations. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to profit or loss unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification. Leasehold
land which title is not expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term is classified
as an operating lease unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease.
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Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation on non-monetary items in respect of
which gain and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme is charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 41 to these financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described above.
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When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction and production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, if the deferred tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, it is
not accounted for.

The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, net of bank overdrafts.

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, the party controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; or has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or has joint control over the
Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer,
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(d) the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made various estimates
and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated. The key source of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements
made in applying accounting policies that result
in significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year or significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are
discussed below:

() Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group's property, plant
and equipment based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
the relevant assets of similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of actual usage and
maintenance, which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or
loss.
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Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The management determines whether the
Group's property, plant and equipment
are impaired at least on an annual basis
or where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment, which is equal to the
higher of net selling price or the value in
use. Estimating the value in use requires
the management to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the
property, plant and equipment and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will charge to profit
or loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The management determines the provision
for impairment of the Group’'s loans
and receivables based on the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. If the
financial conditions of the Group’s customers
and other debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required.
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(i)

ey |

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company and the Group assess annually
if their investments in subsidiaries and
a jointly controlled entity have suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 and follow the guidance of HKAS 39
in determining whether promissory note
receivable and/or amounts due from those
entities are impaired. Details of the approach
are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an
estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and
position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Properties held for capital appreciation

The Group’s investment properties
under development in Panama with a
carrying value of HK$133,600,000 (2070:
HK$184,800,000) are held for capital
appreciation after development but not
for own use. Accordingly, the properties
under development in Panama have been
accounted for as investment properties
instead of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred taxation on fair value gain of
investment properties held in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the
accumulated fair value gain of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong
amounted to HK$171,000,000 (2010:
HK$161,000,000). The Group's plan is to
sell the properties to the market. With
capital gain being exempted from Hong
Kong Profits Tax, management considers no
deferred tax liability shall be recognised in
respect of the temporary differences arising
from the accumulated fair value gain.

Estimation of discounted present value of
promissory note

The Group’'s promissory note receivable
from a jointly controlled entity has been
stated at the present value of estimated
future cash flows, which are expected to
be realisable in four years and discounted
at the original effective interest rate of 9%.
The estimation of the present value requires
the Group to make estimates about the
expected realisation period and original
effective interest rate, and they are subject
to uncertainty. The carrying value of the
promissory note at the end of the reporting
period was HK$121,457,000 (2070:
HK$171,600,000). If the realisation period
and original effective interest rate had
been increased or decreased by 1 year and
10% respectively from the management'’s
estimates, the carrying amount of the
promissory note would be reduced or
increased by approximately HK$14,530,000.
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Future changes in HKFRSs EEAVBREENZARREH

AEBVWERERBEATFR
LHEREZLHE LA
NEEBME THKIERT
(EfRRAER) NBE BT ERELE

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has

not early adopted.

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 12

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 9

HKAS 19

HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

700N

Related Party Disclosures’

Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement'

Improvements to
HKFRSs 20102

Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets?

Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters?

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets*

Presentation of Financial
Statements®

Financial Instruments ©

Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial
Statements ®

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures ®

Consolidated Financial
Statements ©

Joint Arrangements ©

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities ©
Fair Value Measurement?®
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2011

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July, 2010 or 1st January, 2011 (for
those effective on or after 1st July, 2010 that are
relevant to the Group have been adopted by the
Group during the year and disclosed in the section
headed “Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs” set out
in note 2 to the financial statements)

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2012

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January, 2013

The directors are in the process of assessing the
possible impact on the future adoption of these
new/revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position
to reasonably estimate their impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

720N

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale investments,
promissory note receivable and amount
due from a jointly controlled entity, bank
balances and cash, other receivables
and payables, secured bank borrowings,
convertible notes and bank overdrafts.
Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily on the promissory note
receivable from a jointly controlled entity
and the Group’s operation in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Panama. The
currency giving rise to this risk is United
States dollar (“US$"). The Group does not
hedge its foreign currency risks because the
rate of exchange between HK$ and US$
is stable under current market condition
and the existing currency exchange policies
adopted by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.
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Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily
to the Group's secured bank borrowings
with floating interest rates as at the end of
the reporting period. The interest rates and
terms of repayment have been disclosed
in note 27 to these financial statements.
The Group currently does not have a policy
to hedge against the interest rate risk as
management does not expect any significant
interest rate risk as at the end of the
reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to
secured bank borrowings that would have
a significant effect to the profit or loss. A
change of 100 basis points was applied to
the yield curves at the respective end of the
reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's net loss (2010: net profit) would
increase/decrease (2010: decreasel/increase)
by approximately HK$791,555 (2070:
HK$570,000), but there would be no impact
on the other equity reserves.
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The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
secured bank borrowings in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase
or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the
next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed securities
classified as investments held-for-trading
and available-for-sales investments in the
consolidated financial statements. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the
quoted market price had been 5% (2010:
5%) higher or lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss
would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$1,465,000 (2070: N/A) as a result
of changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Investment revaluation reserve would be
increased or decreased by HK$11,000 (2070:
HK$11,000) as a result of changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale investments. The
Group’s sensitivity to equity price has not
changed significantly from the prior year.
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The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible
changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price
risk in existence at that date. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables, that none of the Group’s
securities investments would be considered
impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index
or other relevant risk variables, and that all
other variables remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in the
relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables over the period until the next
annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors
will default on their obligations to repay the
amounts due to the Group, resulting in a
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
mainly attributable to the promissory note
receivable and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity.

The management closely monitors the
financial position of the jointly controlled
entity and is ready to take appropriate
actions to safeguard the interest of the
Group as and when necessary. Therefore,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk is to a
large extent limited. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of the promissory note receivable
and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity as reported in the Group’s statement
of financial position.
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At the end of the reporting period, the
Company had a concentration of credit risk
as 87% (2010: 62%) and 100% (20710:
99%) of the total amounts due from
subsidiaries were due from a subsidiary and
the top five subsidiaries respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’'s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through banking facilities
available. At the end of the reporting period,
unutilised banking facilities available to the

Group amounted to approximately HK$ Nil

(2010: HK$23,000,000).

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities
of the Group and the Company at the end
of the reporting period based on contractual
undiscounted payments is summarised

below:

At 30th June, 2011

Bank overdrafts

Other payables

Amount due to a subsidiary
Secured bank borrowings

At 30th June, 2010

Other payables

Amounts due to directors
Amount due to a subsidiary
Secured bank borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
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The amounts repayable under a loan
agreement that includes a clause that gives
the lender the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on
demand” bracket. In this regard, interest-
bearing bank borrowings of HK$79,156,000
(2010: HK$57,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period have been so classified even
though the directors do not expect that the
bank would exercise its rights to demand
repayment and thus these borrowings, which
include payment of interest, would be repaid
according to the following schedule as set
out in the loan agreements:

At 30th June, 2011 N-E——&

BEERBZ (EEHLT

BEE ANERMEEDER
EHBE R IER) - EE
BREHEIBEAREX
Bl —W-smtms &
EEPZRITIETEA
REFIESKBR - 5T BRTT
f£3%79,156,000/8 7T (==
—Z4F 1 57 .000,000;% 7T)
BRYIREBARDE LA
B IBEEERITER

E$@%§Hﬂm 1 1%

At 30th June, 2010 RZE—FF

LR E P I AT
IR ER

Within 2-5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
— AR ZERF BEBBIEF k]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FET THET FHET
4,700 18,798 69,616 93,114
57,464 - - 57,464

mm77
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(b)

78N

Categories and fair value of financial
instruments

Fair value disclosures

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at 30th June, 2011 across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with
the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data;

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.

—E——FRNA=THILFE

(b)

B TANSERATE
AFERE

KTE2IMR =T ——FX
A=1+BUARFEFEN
M TAZE@EE RE
BB EERETR B
BILE: ?&Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’\]@
FESHHEN=EF

o tlﬁ%&“*ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ
BTAZRAFEZEIE
RYRNFEFEHEER
WERESR2BMETE -
BERASHAERNOT ¢

© E-SBBES
%) : FIREERD
15 7 4 R 81 7% T &,
95 8 (R 12 9 %)
SHEATME

o FoFEHR:MARE
R T 5 R LR
BLANRE 3k
MEEZ28HE
ERHEEENATH
Rhi5BIENEE
& AHERTE

¢ E=SRBES
8): IREAES
LY IHERTE
% 1745 00 A0 18
FEHEATE -
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Financial assets measured at fair value

Available-for-sale AHEERE -
investments:

Equity securities REEEMZ
listed in AT %
Hong Kong

Financial assets at ~ #Z2\F(EZ(F
fair value through 3 A8z
profit or loss: ZHBEEE -

Held-for-trading #{EEERNES

investments listed EFH2Zz&&
in Hong Kong

Held-for-trading
investments listed FHZ&&
overseas

Available-for-sale A i E & -
investments:
Equity securites  RBEBEMWZ
listed in N
Hong Kong

URFEFAEZHEEE

At 30th June, 2011

R-ZB——HXA=1H

FEEERNEIN

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
et E-ZEH FER E=EH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FHET
220 220 - -
11,215 11,215 - -
18,094 18,094 - _
At 30th June, 2010
RoB-FEAA=TA
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HBET F—FL F_FER FE=FR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FHIT FHT
220 220 - -

During the years ended 30th June, 2011
and 2010, there were no transfers between

Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,

and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.

RZE——FRXA=TH
rE—FT-FTFA=TH
FEFEEAR RFEFER
F—ELAREBE_FR M
REBBLKSBIEATE
AEEBARERENE
ZEHA -

EE7/9
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 &%

/\\’T\

somm

—T——FXA

=THIEFE

The carrying amounts of each of the
following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities are set out as follows:

Loans and receivables measured at
cost/amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments)
Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Amount due from a director
Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity
Bank balances and cash

Available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value:
Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss measured at
fair value:

Held-for-trading investments

Financial liabilities measured at
cost/amortised cost:

Bank overdrafts

Other payables

Amounts due to directors

Secured bank borrowings

Obligations under finance leases

Convertible notes

B BEH A E

ZEERENK -
B 5 K& H h FE R IE
(T ERIEFEAR)
R — Bz 2 E
A R R FE WK IE
e E = FE
A — R RS A FA
JE W R IE
RITEFRRS

B FlEiTEZ AT
HENYFEE -
AEERE

BATEA 825
AFEEEFHA
AR EEE -

FEER 2 RE

PZ e 1%
FEZHERE -
RITEX

H b &3R8
FENEEFIA
BEHEFRITEE
A& MK A
SRR

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
as reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their fair

value.

N BRER M EER
MBaEmREES S

T
2011 2010
—g--5 —T-T%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
2,912 3,817
121,457 171,600
- 146
16,388 16,383
28,516 2,403
169,273 194,349
220 220
29,309 -
204 -
5,188 3,347
- 15,317
79,156 57,000
- 21
37,510 -
122,058 75,685

REBEESEZER  GEHE
B 75K 2R DR 2 B 75
BEMVYHEBEZREE

MFERFE-
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain
an optimal capital structure, to reduce the cost of
capital and to support the Group’s stability and
growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 30th June, 2011 and 2010.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover M
Gross rental income from

investment properties

H Wz
HEHA

Other revenue
Interest income

4.

EXER

AEEEAER BNRRER
FEREEELERN  A/K
RIBHER N SEMMEEFR
Yo B LA #E F5 S IR AR E AN
e ERERA R FAEHE
ZIRTEMIBR -

AEEFH L THEMAREELR
BARBEBEANRBZEB 2 BANE
BREBREZE®R FEEEAN
EEARZEARER - HRBE
ﬁ%iﬂ%&ﬁﬁ tE o AEE
AEAMER TREZCREZE
%*%ﬁﬁk$jﬁk$ﬁ@§
KeRZZE——FXA=FTHK
TE-ZEFEXA=ZF+HILFE
W EBEEE - BRRIEFITE

EES NS EE

BB MRUEERE WA

- Financial assets at fair value through  — 12 A F(EE L ABRE

profit or loss 2B EE
- Others — H
Total revenue U=

Group

e3 3
2011 2010
—g-—F C—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
4,649 4,847
1,013 -
23 2
1,036 2
5,685 4,849

HE31
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6. OTHER INCOME

Dividend income from available-for-
sale investments

Additional consideration received from 720064 H &% /KB B
disposal of equity interest in Danshui #2252 & YeF i &
in 2006 (Note (a)) (Btat(a))

HEEMEE Ba

Gain on disposal of other assets

6. HflA

A E IR E R B A

Gain on disposal of financial assets at &R A FEZ{LT ABL

fair value through profit or loss
Sundry income ESEY PN

Note (a):

On 27th June, 2006, the Group disposed of its 60%
equity interest in a subsidiary of the Company, B[Z& %
IKENIS R AR 2 8)("Danshui”) for HK$61,956,000.
Deposits of HK$28,302,000 and the remaining balance of
the consideration were received during the years ended
30th June, 2005 and 2007, respectively. During the year
ended 30th June, 2010, the Group received an additional
consideration of approximately HK$8,976,000 in relation
to the disposal of the Danshui interest. In the opinion
of the directors, there were no obligations or conditions
imposed on the Group in respect of the receipt of the
additional consideration.

g82mm

TG EEZ Wik

Group
REE
2011 2010
—B-——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
12 3
- 8,976
14,843 2,196
374 -
136 222
15,365 11,397

BieE(a) -

R-ZEEXENA-++H AEEH
EHER B R A EG FR K S 2
BARAAF (D#RK]) #960% 8D - KE
#61,956,000/% JT ° E 28,302,000/
TEHTREZHEESINR=ZZZR
FRNAZTHEFERZZEZEF A
“+ALEFERR - RZE—FF XA
=+BILEFE ASBERRAGEHEEEHR
K2 Bz I AR B 49 48,976,000 7T ©
EETRANEETFTZ BRI A B ZH
I EAER G S -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. /]:T\%BEE\
Management identifies operating segments based EEEBEEENTHREITELS R
on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by FEEZARREZES LD EEER
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes KEEERIR 2 RS RS AR
of allocating resources to segments and assessing RE DI BEERABE BN
their performance. The directors consider resort B EXRENIEEERESER
development, property investment and investment ZEFEREDE c RERZER
holding are the Group’s major operating segments. NEEDEBIEZ A EE BN
The Group’s resort development segment includes BA KB EREE - 28
multi-purpose resort communities as well as NE#aie it o (HEEERNE
sale of condo hotels, residential units and club B EE DI E A BEEUL A ©
memberships. No revenue has been earned by MELESILFEMIEAE RIS
the resort development segment which is still B EEAE W AmMFE ZEE
under development. The property investment MR o & D BT Mk E
segment includes mainly residential and commercial BEET ©
properties that are held for capital appreciation or
to earn rentals. The investment holding segment
includes holding and trading of investments and
other assets. No operating segments have been
aggregated.
Segment revenue and results for the year ended HE_ET—FA=1+HIE
30th June, 2011 are presented below: B 7292 A NEES RO T -
Resort Property  Investment
development  investment holding Total
EBRNER MERE REER HmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THER THET
Turnover =0 - 4,649 - 4,649
Other revenue and income  Hftlkz Rk A - 138 16,261 16,399
- 4,787 16,261 21,048
Results £
Segment results HEEE (53,396) 14,518 1,017 (37,861)
Unallocated corporate income — RAEA FHA 2
Unallocated corporate expenses A2 BEARIEH (9,772)
Finance costs BERAE (3,400)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBAT 2R (6,628) (6,628)
Imputed interest expenses on JE(E — R R
promissory note receivable NAMERLERZ
from a jointly controlled entity ~ {EEF B (50,143) (50,143)
Share of results of a jointly JE Al — P L[R5
controlled entity NRIEES (27,676) (27,676)
Loss before tax BEAIER (135,478)
Taxation 18 1,993
Loss for the year FEERE (133,485)

HES3
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 &%

—E——FRNA=THILFE

Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2011

and other segment information for the year ended

30th June, 2011 are presented below:

Assets

Liabilities

Other segment information:

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Additions to investment
properties

Change in fair value of
investment property

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

aE

REMZLTE
Pa¢ 4
PAil |

Gain on disposal of other assets  HEEMAZE 2 Uiz
Release of prepaid lease payments ERERBERF

g4 mm

Nt S = e S Dl
BENBERBE_ZT—FRX
RA=1tRIEFEZHMDEER
FIFRIAT

Resort Property  Investment Segment
development  investment holding total  Unallocated Total
ERHYER nERE REER AREE xR 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TERL Thx Thx Thx Thx
271,867 245,442 37,046 554,355 2131 581,666
1,287 79 39,906 41,989 80,320 122,309
- 26 305 331 19 350
1,805 - - 1,805 - 1,805
53,005 (12,100) 40,905 - 40,905
- a0 426 868 282 1,150
- - 14,843 14,843 - 14,843
- 4 - 4 - 4
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Segment revenue and results for the year ended BE_T—ZTEFEXNA=ZTHILTF
30th June, 2010 are presented below: B2 AREEE BRI
T
Resort Property
development investment Total
ERNER MR E #aza
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TFET FET
Turnover M - 4,847 4,847
Other revenue and income KR EA - 9,182 9,182
- 14,029 14,029
Results &
Segment results DEBELE 16,554 55,906 72,460
Unallocated corporate income 79t A U A 2,217
Unallocated corporate KO AFER
expenses (22,655)
Finance costs BhE AN (462)
Share of results of a jointly — FE{E— R @R
controlled entity NEIRELE 308 308
Profit before tax R 75 AL 51,868
Taxation 1| (4,295)
Profit for the year FE %A 47,573
Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2010 RZE—ZFEFA=THZHE
and other segment information for the year ended ﬁ%&ﬁ&&@i_i TEXR

30th June, 2010 are presented below: A=+THIEFEZ2EMDILER

FIERAAT -
Resort Property Segment
development  investment total  Unallocated Total
ERNEE  DERE DEERE Ak &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TR
Assets &g 384,154 254,501 638,655 29,070 667,725
Liabilities & 2,885 4,717 7,602 72,378 79,980
Other segment information: HEtpaEs
Additions to property, EE - BEREE
plant and equipment - 102 102 104 206
Additions to investment properties  #EREMF 2.525 _ 2.525 _ 2.525
Depreciation of property, nE- BEREEINE
plant and equipment - 1,055 1,055 604 1,659
Release of prepaid lease payments R TENRER - 40 40 - 40

HES85
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 &%

B BREM T

There was no revenue generated from
inter-segment transactions for both years. Revenue
reported above for the property investment
segment represents rental income earned from
external customers and a related party. Segment
results represent profit or loss attributable to
each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, share of the results of a jointly
controlled entity, finance costs and income tax
expense. Segment assets and liabilities represent
all assets and liabilities of reportable segments
other than those that have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in
Canada, Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
other than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and Panama.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue from external customers and a
related party by geographical market:

Hong Kong B
Canada mex
PRC =8

Somm

—E——FRNA=THILFE

RREFEADBER B LB E
EWA - LillREZDERED
BB Z M AT B R B SN ER R M
BAEE T 2 HE WA - DEEER

RERDHEPRITHER  B1A
—EHRZEHRBNESE  BE

PR - R T R E A AU A KT
B Z AT © “%é?&ﬁﬁ

RBRBEDHZAEEERA
8 - FRIFNEE B RPN -

HWEEFEE

AEEZEEWREIBZUNME
K& PEARLME (T
B TBEREE) RBRUE
5 ((RBRLEE]) REEF -

TR E TS E H A EE
BE SN AR R — BB s
S

Turnover by
geographical market

R EHSHD
2011 2010
—g——-% -T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F FHT
1,147 122

288 17

3,214 4,708
4,649 4,847
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The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts REEMEMREEI D ZIERHE
of non-current assets by geographical area in which EREEZOWWT :

the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEREE
2011 2010
—B——-F —ZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Hong Kong 5 231,708 222,686
BV RBRAEE - 27,676
Canada mEx 5,600 2,556
Panama Bes 133,600 184,800
PRC H 11,143 35,398
382,051 473,116
Non-current assets presented above exclude FHIEREBEELTBEIBHET
financial instruments. The Group does not have H - AEBEWRBELEREE
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets E - BEBENENEEKBRR
and rights arising under insurance contracts. BREAZ R o
Information about major customers FTEBERES
Revenue from external customers contributing MEREDH 2 WRBEIRET
over 10% of the total revenue from the Group's I KB #B10%H) S 50 B &= 2 4B Uk
property investment segment is as follows: o
2011 2010
—E-—-F —ZIZE-EZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Customer A R 1,279 1,756
Customer B BRI N/A 442
Customer C BEENR N/A 500

HE3g7
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8.

Interest on convertible notes AMRER 2 E
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  R1TE 2 F 5

— wholly repayable within five years —BRAFAZEE
- wholly repayable more than five years — ZRHAF2EEE

| Stfatements

BE XA

Finance charges on obligations under — BiE L AEHNRNE & F

finance leases

The analysis shows the interest expenses on bank
borrowings, which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled
repayment dates as set out in the loan agreements.
For the years ended 30th June, 2011 and 2010
the interest expenses on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted
to HK$722,000 and HK$Nil respectively.

ey ||

Group

REEH
2011 2010
—B——F —T-TfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
2,677 -
& - 452
722 -
1 10
3,400 462

ATBERERBERERBZER LD
FWHE R A HNRITEERN B
AY  BFPEBSTEEREKE
RZER - HE2E—E——FR
T-FTFXA=1TH " RITEE
FEsSTEERFERZIERD
FEFAXZ DR AE722,0008 T &
,\\\/%TE°
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 & & _i——i/\ﬂjatiﬁ

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRBIAI(ER)EF

(Loss) Profit before tax has been arrived at after

BrREiAT (B8R) &M E kR T2

charging: &IF -
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Staff costs, including BIRA - B3
directors’ emoluments: E= S
Salaries and other benefits e RHAET 8,541 13,155
Share-based payments L‘AH% RERR - 5,332
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R RAEF|EH 2|42 99 109
Total staff costs B8 T A A 8,640 18,596
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEEE &
Current year KEE 500 450
Underprovision in prior year BAFERETR 43 20
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREEOITE
plant and equipment 1,150 1,659

BRELESWRZ

REMENERELEX L
generated rental income 1,776 1,790
FELRBEELHEES WG

REMENEERLEXH

Direct operating expenses relating to
investment properties that

Direct operating expenses relating to
investment properties that

did not generate rental income 8 881
Donations ek - 824
Impairment loss on trade and R L B SRR B L A JE L

other receivables SRIEHY BB R - 196
Net decrease in fair values of BAFEE T ABEZ

financial assets at fair value W EE 2 N EFRD

through profit or loss 1,341 -
Operating lease payments on premises EFHALLSHEL L H 2,720 3,101
Release of prepaid lease payments fERRTE N ERIE 41 40
Write-off of property, VI RE R 2 TR

plant and equipment 3 -

HE 389
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10. TAXATION 10.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the
Group does not have any assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong for both years.

Taxation arising in the PRC and overseas
jurisdictions, if applicable, are calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

The tax (credit) charge comprises:

BIE

RAER EFE > AEELLH
FENGHANBBRENAKE
I 48 A o] (1 78 P EE A RO E AR TR
A -

B NOB SN RDA R IE £ AR
B Ee - RIRARAERE
MIRITED > REMEHOH X

E
an

A (ER) ERMEH

Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax AR B R
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEENED -
Current year REE - -
Under-provision in previous year MEFERETR - 26
- 26
Deferred taxation BAEHE
Origination and reversal of TRt ERENES RED
temporary differences (1,993) 4,269
(1,993) 4,269
Total tax (credit) charge for the year AFEEHE (Ke) BA
HREE (1,993) 4,295

oOmm
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Taxation recognised directly in other BEEEERARRMEE K2
comprehensive income
Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deferred tax relating to revaluation B EEEEREYE
surplus upon transfer of property, EXBEBEMLAR
plant and equipment to ZIEIERIR
investment properties 119 -
Reconciliation of taxation B B2 R 5T
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Loss) Profit before tax BrELAT (B518) &7 (135,478) 51,868
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of RERENEHDIE16.5%
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZE—FF :165%)
HE (22,354) 8,558
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in 7 5 i 3845 35 F1 B A~ A FO 8
determining taxable profit A2 M2 18,800 5,283
Tax effect of income not taxable in B TE R AR T 0 A B 78 AR AR
determining taxable profit WA Z B2 (4,554) (10,644)
Differences in tax rates of RARENERE AR E 2
other jurisdictions =8 3,339 (1,563)
Unrecognised deductible AR ERFEER
temporary difference 3,176 -
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised  77{# KR Z Fi15E 12 - (2)
Recognition of taxable temporary ERENEMEE 2B
differences due to change of 5 N mEE Y
expected recovery manner of JERTHE R EER
revalued assets - 2,144
Under-provision in previous year BEFETZEE - 26
Others =) (400) 493
Tax (credit) expenses for the year RERE (FH) BIESH (1,993) 4,295

EEOT
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 Eﬁz?;:?——i/‘_\ﬂ =T HIEFEE

11.

12.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss) profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a loss of HK$31,069,000 (2010:
HK$7,546,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
and up to the date of these consolidated financial
statements (2070: HK$Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a)

92mm

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each

of the six (2070: eight) directors were as

follows:

Year ended 30th June, 2011 —B—-£
ABZTRLEE
BE

Fees g
Other emoluments i
Salaries and other benefits e RAtER

SR

Retirement benefit scheme

contributions
Total emoluments e
Year ended 30th June, 2010 —E-%%
NAZTRIEE
Fees i
Other emoluments Efde
Share-based payments WBRRER
(Note 5) IR (3ks)
Salaries and other benefits %4 kA MEF
Discretionary bonus iETAL
Retirement benefit scheme  RAVETIE B
contributions

e

Total emoluments

1. EEREATMESEA
By (B518) &R
AN ARB DA ANE
&(B1R) aMNBREEARR
R BREPERAZEER
31,069,000/ 7T (= &F —F4F -
7,546,000
E@$¢f&§¢$ m/\ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ
igz agi JIE :jz i»; [FE5 /LL\ (/——— :;;? JEE?
F ) o
12. EEREEME
() ES=M<
ARANUES (—F—F
F:)Uz) SEHjZES'ZH
ZMEmT
Hung  Wong  Hung
Kin Kar Kai  Fang Lun Lam Ka
Sang,  Gee,  May, Chin Lo Tsan Su Wai,
Raymond ~ Mimi  Marcus  Ping Yun Ta| Kau Rulia Graham  Total
AEE IZE O MER FETY  BER  RER BME  M3E ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS' 000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tén TAr Thn TAr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
(th§1) (th91) (thg1) (thg 2} Note2) (Note 3)
(Pte) - (iske)  (Wskn) o (WEt2)  (Wst2) (F3t3)
(Note 4)  (Note4)
iz ()
- 62 - - - 125 125 125 437
4142 1307 - - - - - 5,671
10 - 12 - - - - - n
4,152 284 1319 - - 125 125 125 6,130
- - - - 50 100 { 100 292
2724 1600 1,008 - - - - - 53
4404 3315 1210 470 - - - - 9419
160 134 57 100 - - - - 451
12 12 12 - - - - - 36
7320 5061 2,287 570 50 100 Y] 100 15,530

* represents payment made during the year for

expenses incurred in previous year.

RENAFEAINBHELFENER -
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZET——F A A=1+THILFE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

During the year, in addition to the
above, the Group provided rent-free
accommodation with estimated rateable
values of approximately HK$130,000
(2010: HK$170,000), HK$Nil (20710:
HK$2,241,000) and HK$381,000 (2070:
HK$207,000), respectively, to Hung Kin
Sang, Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Hung”),
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi (“Ms. Wong") and
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (“Mr. Marcus
Hung”).

On 24th November, 2009, Fang Chin Ping
and Lo Yun Tai resigned as an executive
director and an independent non-executive
director of the Company, respectively.

Su Ru Jia was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 24th February,
2010.

On 14th January, 2011, Ms. Wong
retired as a non-executive director of
the Company. On 6th April, 2011, Mr.
Raymond Hung resigned as an executive
director of the Company.

These represent the estimated value of
share options granted to the directors.

I == 7

BsET -

PisE2 -

B5E3 -

Fi5E4 -

PFES -

RFEE BREozi - &
EMEFRMBEMTHE
EhEITRELLR
ML E 2 BEAEE
2 Bl A130,000% 7T (=
F — £ F 170,000/
o) BET(ZFE—F
F 2,241,000 x) &
381,000 L (=& — &
iF : 207,000/87T) °

TEFEEREBEEL
RZZZAFE+ A=+
MADHIRERARREZ
HITEE MBI IENITE
=.

BLEREE -2 -2F
TAZTTMERERER
RRFZBILIFNTE
=.

E-F——%— A+
A ELLREATNE
PITEE - E-F——F
PANE - R S R
EARTZRTES -

ERBRTERZBREZ
fBEHEE -

HEO3

]
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e IS E N
Year ended 30th June, 2011 B2 ——F NA=1+HLFE

(b)

94 mm

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included
two (2010: four) directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2010: one) individual are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e RHAMETR
Discretionary bonus BIETEAT

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFET B R

contributions

The three (2070: one) highest paid
individuals’ remuneration falls within the
following band:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T 1,000,000 7T

During both years, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
During both years, no directors waived any
emoluments.

(b)

BEMS

TEEaHFALTBE_4
(ZFE—FF:- L) &
E-AMeFBEHEHR L
o Hp—H(ZFE—F
F:—F)ATzHewm
T~

Group

EE
2011 2010
e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
1,357 581
- 47
36 12
1,393 640

=R (ZF-FF: —F)
RmHFALTZHEE T
#E -

Number of employees

EBEHE
2011 2010
S i
3 1

RAREREFER KE
EYEAALARSHAL
(BRES) IR
ERMBEAREEZES
SR IR 5 B B 4F /5 ¥R
el IBERAE S - 1
REREFER REF
I RIS
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZET——F A A=1+THILFE

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. B8R (FE) BF
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per HEARANTIESZEEAESEEIR
share attributable to the equity holders of the EAN (EBE) BRWT

Company is based on the following data:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
(Loss) Profit for the purposes of FTEEREAR (FiE) &7
basic (loss) earnings per share TRz (BE) &7 (133,485) 47,573
2011 2010
—g--% —T-TF
No. of shares  No. of shares
RAEE IR1NEE
Weighted average number of FEEREAR (BE) BF
ordinary shares for the purposes FrER AR 2 hnie F 35 A% 1n
of basic (loss) earnings per share g =| 838,874,168 838,888,826
Diluted (loss) earnings per share is the same as FHREE (FE) BANETGIRE
basic (loss) earnings per share because the exercise A (EiE) BHMHER - =%
price of the share options granted is higher than BEEHR P AERETHE
the average market price of shares for both years. HERBEH T FHETHE -

HEO5
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 B2 ——F NA=1+HLFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. ?ﬁﬁ%%
Group
rEHE
HK$'000
THETT

Fair value AFE
At 1st July, 2009 AZ_ETNFLH—AR 204,400
Additions — subsequent expenditure g — HIZEA 2,525
Reclassification from property, ME -  BMEMREBETOE

plant and equipment 165,711
Net increase in fair values N EEINFEE 64,452

At 30th June, 2010 RZZE—ZFA=1+H 437,088
Additions — subsequent expenditure #ig — BB 1,805
Reclassification from property, BYE - BERREEHDE

plant and equipment 4,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMB AR (FF37) (24,388)
Net decrease in fair values NHERDFE (40,905)
At 30th June, 2011 R=ZB——FXA=t+H 377,600

The fair values of the investment properties of
the Group at 30th June, 2011 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuation as at the end of the
reporting period carried out by BMI Appraisals
Limited (“BMI"”), an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers not connected with the
Group. BMI is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”) and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties at the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties, was conducted on an open
market basis by the comparison approach assuming
sale with the benefit of vacant possession or by
making reference to comparable sale evidences as
available in the relevant market.

%mm

R-E——FRA=1tH &%
BIREMEZ A TFEEDNRES
AEEVEBAEZHIERDE
fMEMPMARFEBR AR
ZBETZHERH  c EAEE
RErmEs ([FEAIEMBR])
B &A A EERMERE bR
BAMER 2 EERLR  Mmxfh
BENREEBNSMBE TR
(FEREMBGYERMEERE)
e ERRRMSEEELY
FTRABRRETKIHEZED R
FARBELRAI N TS LRHERA]
LS E RS H2K o
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZET——F A A=1+THILFE

All of the Group’s property interests held under

operating leases to earn rental or for capital

appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The carrying values of investment properties held

by the Group comprise:

Held in Hong Kong:
Long-term leases

Held outside Hong Kong:

Medium-term leases
Freehold

MEERA
REMD

REBAIMEIRE

FEEA
IR SEHE

EREBIAEES

WEFRZY

EEamERSBEAERE
RIBEARFEITDEFEMD IR

REHBEME

AEBRHEZREMEZEAE

B
2011 2010
—g——% —2-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHR Ttz
230,000 220,000
14,000 32,288
133,600 184,800
377,600 437,088

HE9/



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 732 % & MAR A 7 ® Annual Report 2011 F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS

Year ended 30th June, 2011 H#E-_FT——F NA=1+HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost/Valuation

At st July, 2009

Additions

Reclassification to investment
properties

Disposals

At 30th June, 2010

Additions

Revaluation

Reclassification to investment
properties

Write-off

At 30th June, 2011

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At st July, 2009

Provided for the year

Reclassification to investment

properties
Disposals

At 30th June, 2010

Provided for the year
Write-off

At 30th June, 2011

Carrying values
At 30th June, 2011

At 30th June, 2010

o8 mm

15. V¥ - BERRE

EE
Properties Leasehold Furniture,
under land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
development buildings improvements ~ equipment vehicles Total
G %8
BROUE thEET RENEER k&% HE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
T AT T T T T
A/ e
RZEENELA-H 170,501 3,145 12,564 5,868 13,308 205,386
i - - 87 119 - 206
ENORERENE
(170,501) - - - - (170,501)
k3 - - (287) (4,866) (1.974) (7.127)
R-Z-5&
~A=TH - 3,145 12,364 1,121 11,334 27,964
b - - 206 125 19 350
Eff - 1,444 - - - 1,444
ENABERENE
- (4,000) - - - (4,000)
it - - - (320) - (320)
RZg--%
~AZTH - 589 12,570 926 11,353 25,438
ZRAERNE
RZZSNE
thA-H 4,790 80 11,916 5,629 10,633 33,048
FEINE - 7 367 153 1132 1,65
ENABERENE
(4,790) - - - - (4,790)
k=3 - - (287) (4,866) (1,974) (7.127)
R-Z-%&
~AZTH - 87 11,99 916 9,791 22,79
FEE - 206 146 770 1,150
i - - - (317) - 317)
RZB--F
~AZTH - 95 12222 745 10,561 23,623
BEE
RIE--F
~AZTH - 494 348 181 792 1815
RZZ-%F
~A=TH - 3,058 368 205 1,543 5174
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e MRS N

Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE—ZT——F A A=1+THILFE

The carrying values of land and buildings held by
the Group comprise:

Freehold properties held in Canada ENMEXEEZ
IKAEREWE
Held in the PRC under long-term FEP B AR EAFE 4
land use rights BHEZHAEME

The freehold properties held in Canada of the
Group were reclassified to investment properties
during the year ended 30th June, 2011.

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment of the Group include an aggregate
amount of HK$Nil (2070: HK$378,000) in respect
of assets held under finance leases.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets of the Group and the Company
represent antiques held for long-term investment
purposes. In the opinion of the directors, the other
assets are worth at least their carrying value at the
end of the reporting period.

16.

AEBFAZ L METRAEE
B

2011 2010
—g--% —T 7
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

- 2,556

494 502

494 3,058

AEEFBRERPZIOERMRN
MERZKAZREDNSE LR
E-——FRNA=tHEEREH
DEEREYE -

REBZME - BEREHZE
AEREREREROBZEZE
ERENEST (ZF—FF:
378,000%7T) °

HtwEE
AEEEMBER/ERIRER
BRAZEE -BEEZRR N5

BPRA TN EMWEEZELHA
REEZ(EE-

HEOoo
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE -—ZT——F R A=THILFE

17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 17. A —REH = = & N 7] Z*E
ENTITY =
Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E-—-F —ZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
Share of net assets JEIEFEE - 27,676
As at 30th June 2011, the Group had interest in HeE—E——FXA=+H &
the following jointly controlled entity: = B A T 51 FE B 420 ) A T R A R
=

Proportion of

Place of Class of issued share
Name of jointly Form of incorporation/ shares capital held
controlled entity  business operation held by the Group Principal
HEEZEH DT structures  FMRIL BERE HEBIFE activities
ot MESEBEN EXEHE Al Bl FEHEK
%
Bk
Quorum lIsland Corporation  The BVI Ordinary 50 Resort and
(BVI) Limited BRAT RBELES L@ property
("Quorum”) development
IEX=Uapd
L E Y
The summarised financial information in respect EANERR—BEEZS 2
of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity RIZ NP HES AEABREEAE
which is accounted for using the equity method is BrigERT
set out below:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Non-current assets EMBEE 82,921 82,646
Current assets MENEE 273 41,107
Current liabilities RERE (83,194) (96,077)
Income WA 319 311
Expenses X (27,995) (3)

100mm
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re MRS MR

Year ended 30th June, 2011 & & _i——i/\ﬂjatiﬁ

The unrecognised share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity for the current year and
cumulatively up to the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$12,957,000 (2070: HK$Nil) and
HK$12,957,000 (2010: HK$Nil) respectively.

Interlsle Holdings Limited (“Interlsle”), the joint
venture partner, failed to meet its obligation to pay
the outstanding consideration of US$10.5 million
(the "Outstanding Consideration”) in relation to its
subscription of the 50% equity interest in Quorum,
which led to the failure of Quorum to deliver its
payment of the promissory note of US$22 million
to the Group on the due date of 9th April, 2011.
Upon advice from Quorum’s lawyer, even though
the joint venture agreement provides that the
above failure would lead to a reduction in Interlsle’s
shareholding in Quorum, control does not shift
to the Group until certain actions are taken by
Interlsle to enable the control of Quorum being
taken over by the Group. Since the Group has not
obtained control over Quorum at the end of the
reporting period, the directors consider Quorum
should remain as a jointly controlled entity of the
Group.

At 30th June, 2011, included in the statement
of financial position of Quorum is a land with
a carrying amount of HK$165,842,000 (2070:
HK$165,292,000), of which HK$82,921,000
(2010: HK$82,646,000) relates to the Group's
interest. The fair value of the land as at 30th
June, 2011, excluding pre-development expenses
of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$62,400,000)
(2010: US$8,000,000), was approximately
HK$205,000,000 (2070: HK$250,000,000), which
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent
professional valuer.

REE KRB ERTY|HE R —H
HEZH QAR ZAEREMLE
%a 5 Bl A12,957,00008 ¢ (=&

—F4F - ) 12,957,000 7T
(ZE—FF : f7) -

Interlsle Holdings Limited
(Mnterisle]) » REEH H & &
HRETEY  INBEBEENRE
T QuorumHy50%% 4 = K (& 2
X f810,500,000% 7T ([ K € &
RKE])  BEHQuorum ™ gE IR
KT ——F M AN BBz &
H 2= 522,000,000 JT ° IR &
QuorumZEIzER - BEEE
WEER X LMARBETEBSE
Binterlsleld 4> f£Quorum#f X
2 OAZHIRBILEERER
£E - B Zinterlslef X B E T 17
B 7N 5 [E # B Quorum 2 1%
o BREYHREIR AR B Z
BEEQuorumZ EH#E - EE
E@%Quorumﬁ%x%%(’ﬁ?%ﬁ%
HEZESA

EZZE——F~A=+8H" &
B 7 AR O 3R B & Quorum A - #b
H BR ™ {8165,842,0008 JT (—
F—FF 165,292,000/ 7T)
H 182,921,000 JT (= & —
F F : 82,646,000/% T) B AN
SENFZm BE-ZZT——F
NAZTH: THARQAFEYD
/£205,000,0008 7T (= &£ — &F
4F : 250,000,000/& ) © T~BIE
AiT 859 % £ A 8,000,0003 7t (4
B1162,400,0008 ) (- E—F
4F : 8,000,000 ) + EHREL
BEREMMNZ B NHEAER
Fhi o

mE 101
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE -—ZT——F R A=THILFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FA{HET=
Group
REE
2011 2010
—2--5 CZZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Current portion TEEE S 40 40
Non-current portion JEmEN B D 1,591 1,632
1,631 1,672
Prepaid lease payments of the Group represent cost NEFERBEMBENTBARESN
paid for long-term lease land use rights in the PRC. R i BEnREAHA SR
The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. AN KRS R FEE A o
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. A{HEEERE
Group
AEE
2011 2010
—EB-—-fF —ZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAET
Equity investments at fair value listed — ZATFEFEZ #ERERE
in Hong Kong REBLT 220 220
The fair values of the listed investments are EHERKRE 2 A FETIERE
determined on the basis of quoted market price at EY|HREAR TS MEMETE °

the end of the reporting period.

102 mm
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZET——F A A=1THILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

Held-for-trading investments at fair
value
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
Debt instruments listed overseas

The fair values of the listed investments are
determined on the basis of quoted market price at

the end of the reporting period.

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B5EW

HipEu
Deposits, prepayments &4 - FEN K
and other debtors H b EREA

JE U — AR

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Amount due from
a related party

200 RAFEBLAFTAERZ

MKEE
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
NEEFHIEEEZ
wE
ERB T2 BAES 11,215 -
BN ETM 2 BT A 18,094 -
29,309 -

EHIRE QP EARII IR
BTG RE RN D HEE -

21. EFZREMERRIE

Group Company
REE AN

2011 2010 2011 2010
B —T-TF ZB-——F —T-IF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FHET THET FET THET
21(a) - 73 - -
2,947 3,744 862 248
21(b) 738 - 313 -
3,685 3,744 1,175 248
3,685 3,817 1,175 248

HE103
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE -—ZT——F R A=THILFE

21(a) TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows credit period ranging within 90
days to its trade customers. The aging analysis of
trade receivables of HK$Nil (2010: HK$73,000) is as

21(a) E % & Eth B W RKIE

AEBERTEESRFZIEE
HIEQORAN - REFEWEEZH
WK (= &F —FF : 73,000/

follows: o) EEREROTIT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Within 90 days R90K A - 73

21(b) AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

The amount represents amount due from Ms.
Wong, a close family member of Mr. Marcus Hung,
a director of the Company, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
maximum amount outstanding of the Group and
the Company during the year were HK$738,000
(2010: HK$Nil) and HK$313,000 (2070: HK$Nil)
respectively. At the end of the reporting period, no
provision had been made for non-repayment of the
balance and the carrying amount of the amount
due approximates its fair value.

22. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM A
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

21(b) FE UL —BABSE 5 -2 FKIE

ZERBEEERTZE (BARA
BEEHEBBAEECREKE) 2
HIE - HAEER RERERE
KER - AEBERARAFRR
BAREESES B A738,000%8
T (ZF—FF - ) 313,000
BIL(ZFE—FF : ££) - NI
HAK - REBEURFETE Z KRB
BEMERDE S BE -

@Wéﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ

Group

EHE
2011 2010
—F-——-F C—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FAT

Classified as : SEEA

Current portion mENERD - 171,600
Non-current portion JEREN RS 121,457 -
121,457 171,600

104 Ml



Applied Development Holdings Limited % H 2 %&£ MAPR A 7 » Annual Report 2011 F5

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2011 EZ&E

Following the expiration of the due date of the
promissory note receivable from a jointly controlled
entity on 9th April, 2011,
Group considers that there is objective evidence

management of the

that an impairment loss on the promissory note has
been incurred. Management expects that the full
amount of the promissory note will be realisable
in approximately four years after the end of the
reporting period. Consequently, imputed interest
expenses of HK$50,143,000 (2070: Nil) measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate of
9% are recognised in the profit or loss to reflect
the impairment resulting from the extended period
of recovery.

The amount is unsecured. At the end of the
reporting period, the promissory note was past due
for less than one year (2070: not yet overdue with
due date on 9th April, 2011).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment term.

Details of the amount due from a director are as
follows:

outstanding

re MRS MR

_f——izxﬂ =tHIFE

R-_E——FNANBE M

H%ﬂ“TZE%%Rm#ZE
HIE AEBEERERBER
BBRBRBEBREELRER
Ko BEEIE  2HERENS
BN FREE - Bt - /&
A B B 250,143,000 7T (= &F
—F4F M) 2LA9% RE B R R

AR AERRREREMNREN
REEE=ZT ABRUARMA
AIE PR RE o] BABR AV RLE ©
ZRIBAEEM o RYIEEIR
HEaBIE—F (F—F
F AR E——FHAN
H i AREE) °
23. W HESERE
ZREREER 25 REEE
%'/TA/H\H
JE—EERIBEBHERLAT :
Group
rEE
Maximum
amount

At 30th June, At 30th June,

Name of director during the year 2011 2010
RZFER RZZB——F RZIZT-ZF
EEnE BRZX &5 ~A=t+H NA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FHET FAT

Ms. Wong, retired on Tt RZE——F
14th January, 2011 —ATImBARE 711 - 146

HE 105
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE -—ZT——F R A=THILFE

24,

25.

26.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 24. BEW—RBERES AT Z
CONTROLLED ENTITY ]
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has B EIEWN . R NEETF
no fixed repayment term. At the end of the BEHR o RATISRHEEK - B HEUA
reporting period, no provision had been made for FTEAEZRAEENEE®REYZ
non-repayment of the amount due and the carrying PR o
amount of the amount due approximates its fair
value.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITEFRRE
Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances RITEGT LR REARERZAE
and cash held by the Group and the Company that MYFSIRIT IS A R 2 IRITETF K&
bear interest at prevailing market interest rates. W o
OTHER PAYABLES 26. HtENARE
Group Company
r5E NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--§ T ZEB--§ ZT-ITH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fiist THERT FET THERT FET
Accrued charges and JER AR K2
other creditors EfEBA 4,162 3,347 2,033 707
Amount due to a ATz
related party ENEZ e 26(a) 1,026 - - -
5,188 3,347 2,033 707

26(a) AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

The amount due to a related party, a close family
member of Mr. Marcus Hung, a director of the
Company, is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed repayment term. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amount of the amount due
approximates its fair value.

106EM

26(a) FAEA L 2 BN RIR

% FE SR 2 BB 0T AN R R
EEHEMEEZTIREK
g NEAR RENEBETEE
HKH - RIIBEIR - ARG
BT ATE -
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE—ZE——F A=+ HLFE

27. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

27. BEHRITEE

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—EB——-F —ZT-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Current portion of bank borrowings mEE D RRITE 3,396 57,000
Non-current portion of bank EMBEL D IRITRERER
borrowings which contains HEhaE TRERR
a repayment on demand clause 2GR 75,760 -
79,156 57,000
Analysis of the amounts due based on ¥ E# 2 HEFIE
scheduled payment dates set out YT BHE R E R =
in the loan agreements (PREAL (iR E kB
(ignoring the effect of any BRNGERZZE) B
repayment on demand clause) DT ¢
is as follows:
Within one year —F R 3,396 57,000
2-5 years ZERF 14,168 -
Over 5 years AFUE 61,592 .
On demand or within one year BERER—FN 79,156 57,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
bank loans carried variable interest rates at Hong
Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus 1.45% (2070:
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus 0.7%) per
annum. The effective interest rates during the year
was 0.91% (2010: 0.74% to 0.88%) per annum.
The bank borrowings are secured by the assets of
the Group as set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The secured bank borrowings with a clause in its
terms that gives the bank a customary overriding
right of repayment on demand and an unfettered
right of terminating the facility at any time by
notice in writing to the Group at its sole discretion
are classified as current liabilities even though
the directors do not expect that the bank would
exercise its rights to demand repayment.

RAFREAR - REBARITER
RS EBRITEERENEF
RNV45% (ZFE—FF : &EFR
7T ZE PR EMEFNFE0.7%) ° 7
FEBREENEERE0IN® (=ZF
— FF 0.74%%F0.88%)° B
BIRTTREFEENEE  ~5F
EENERE MR EMIFE3S o

BEMRITEERBEMMEZ %
AP BTRITEBRERLZE
— Y EVRER R A RIS R LA E
AR EE AN E L) RO R HE
MR BEEFLABHZIR
TTHRITHEEERZIER - NE
TTRERBESRBEE -
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

28. BMEMWERE

Group
rEE

Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments

RIEBAMN K REBRNNRERE

2011 2010 2011 2010
—g-——F —T-TF —¥-——% -—T IfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE  THr TR TAT

Amounts payable: AT EHEE -
Within one year - 22 - 21
More than one year but
less than two years - - - -
- 22 - 21
Less: Future finance charges & : #5R@h&
- (M
Present value of finance FHLEEZIRE
lease obligations - 21
During the year, the finance lease was fully settled. RAFERN EHETEE

108mMH
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2011 EZ&E

SHARE CAPITAL 29.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each TRRTREE0.01ET
Authorised: VAR ¢

At 1st July, 2009, 30th June, R_ZEZNFAEH—H

2010 and 30th June, 2011 —E-TFXA=+H
MZE——F X A=+H

Issued and fully paid: EBITRERE

At 1st July, 2009 RZZEZNFELHA—H

Cancellation upon repurchase of FRIET v S e =R £ g )

treasury shares

At 30th June, 2010
Cancellation upon repurchase of
own shares

At 30th June, 2011

R-B-BEAA=TA
P 1

R-ZE——FXA=1+H

On 12th February, 2010, the Company repurchased
and cancelled 34,329,000 treasury shares held by

Applied Investment.

During the year ended 30th June, 2011, the

re MRS MR

_f——izxﬂ =tHILFE

Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange
a total of 580,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at an aggregate consideration of
HK$110,000, all of which were cancelled during
the year.

The nominal value of cancelled shares was credited
to the capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration was charged to the retained profits
of the Company.

g 2
Number of
ordinary shares HK$’000
EERYE TERT
6,000,000,000 60,000
873,217,826 8,732
(34,329,000) (343)
838,888,826 8,389
(580,000) (6)
838,308,826 8,383
RZZE—ZTF-_A+=H ARQ

AR O] N2 51 4H34,329,000E
REERABRAAFENEER

,T/'\ °

RZE——FRNA=ZTHFE
A KRABIREERSFERLDE
5T & #%0.0178 JT 2 580,000/% &

4R (B A110,00008 7T & I&1H
ERZFEETH -
ZEERNBEREETLERERFE

CENEIE S &E#@F&E%ﬂi
FEAR R REENA

HE 109
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30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
16th September, 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. The Scheme will expire
on 15th September, 2012. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees, including executive
directors, or consultants of the Company and/
or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of adoption of the
Scheme (”“Scheme Mandate Limit”) which was
94,108,074 shares. On 24th November, 2009, it
was resolved in the 2009 Annual General Meeting
that the Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed
to 87,321,782 shares. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual is not permitted to exceed the higher of
1% of the number of shares issued and issuable
under the Scheme or any other limit as may be
permitted under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 by
the grantee on each acceptance of grant. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
In each grant of options, the board of directors of
the Company may at their discretion to determine
the specific exercise period. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and
will be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

1Momm

30.

DU A BB SRR

R-_ZETZ_FAA+RE K
N B RN R AR AT 8 (Rx (AT
g BEREENRAENRE
B R - ZRFEHN T —
“FNAATHRBER - RIEZF
g ARAEFEARARA
R/SHWBARZES (B
MITER) IBERREAIREAR
REIRAD 2 BB AHE -

RIBEZTE R 2 BREMY
RzBRHBE  TSBARM
ZtEEBARRE BTN
210% ([FH 8 X ER ] A
94,108,074 - EF— T T N F+
—AZ+WB  R-ZEZTNAFEAE
FRERNGHBRZTERERRE
¥ ¥ 587,321,782f% - Br FE B
Bl R A PEALE - AR FAEMAE
AIA T2 BB HEFT I o 2 %10 8K
B - TESHBBREZTEC T
M7 2 RHEE 21%K 1R
BREFES EMBAUMBHTZ
EAIEME S (AT EAE) -

Bz B L AR R T B HIE
AP30B AR REBRZARE
1% T & B RE X ZE T M
BT BRETHRLAHES
R B EIE10B S 1 F IR 1T
- R L EERERS  EFgq
RIFEERETELY - 1TEEH
ARAEFEE @ XHEFROE
B EBARR R 2 W E - (i)
ERRLBYIABEEERLRR
Aty 2 FWTE ¢ k(i A A
BIRD 2 H{E (ARSERE)
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZET——F A A=1THILFE

The directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the
Scheme. At 30th June, 2011, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Scheme was
87,321,782 shares, including options of 44,430,000
shares that have been cancelled, which represented
approximately 10.4% of the Company’s issued
share capital.

The following table discloses movements of the
share options of the Company during the year
ended 30th June, 2011.

ARABREWNBRARIZESE KE
BHYALEARRNT 2 BRER
gloem=ZTE——FA=+H"
BEBRET SR TR/
B8 B A&87,321,782 © &
¥ B 3E $444,430,0000% 2 B A%
B AERRARFEEITRGOL
10.4% ©

RRE-F——&XA=tAL

Name of directors

ESpZ

Mr. Raymond Hung

Date of share
options granted

BRERTAM

21.10.2009

Exercisable period

AT EHE

21.10.2009 to 20.10.2014

REELE (Note 1) ZEENETAZT-HE
“ZTNE “Z-RmE+AZ1H
tA-t+-A
(st —)
Ms. Wong 21.10.2009 21.10.2009 to0 20.10.2014
Tat (Note 1) ZEENETAZT-RE
“ERAF CE-mEAA
tA=t-H
(s —)
Mr. Marcus Hung 21.10.2009 21.10.2009 to 20.10.2014
HERLE (Note 1) “ETNFTAZT-RE
STEAE CEREACTR
+h-+-8
(M&—)

Total # 5t

FE  ARRBRENZBFE
R e
Cancelled/
forfeited
Outstanding during  Outstanding  Exercise
at 1.7.2010 the year  at 30.6.2011 price
R-E-%% RZE--F%
thA-H RER ~A=1H
FBE FH/RK AR TREE
(Note 5) HKS
(W&ER) ok
22,700,000 (22,700,000) - 0.29
13,330,000 (13,330,000) - 0.29
8,400,000 (8,400,000) - 0.29
44,430,000 (44,430,000) -
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Notes:

(1) The options were proposed and granted by
the board of directors of the Company on 21st
October, 2009 which were subject to the approval
by shareholders. The approval was subsequently
obtained on 24th November, 2009 which is the
grant date as defined in accordance with HKFRS 2.

(2) The exercise period of the share options of the
Company granted to Mr. Raymond Hung, Ms.
Wong and Mr. Marcus Hung are five years from
the date of grant. There is no minimum vesting
period for the share options granted.

(3) The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was HK$0.29.

(4) The fair values of the share options of the
Company were calculated using the Black-Scholes
model. The valuation of fair value determination
as at the grant date was carried out by
management. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Closing share price at grant date  HK$0.31

Exercise price HK$0.29
Expected volatility 76.0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.26%
Expected dividend yield Nil

(5) Mr. Raymond Hung and Mr. Marcus Hung
voluntarily cancelled all share options granted to
them on 24th November, 2009 in the directors’
meetings on 7 March 2011 and 13 May 2011
respectively. According to the Scheme, Ms.
Wong retired as a non-executive director of the
Company on 14th January, 2011, all share options
granted to her on 24th November, 2009 were
forfeited automatically on the same date.

The risk-free interest rate was based on the yield of
the government bonds issued by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share prices
in the prior year. Any changes in the subjective
assumptions of the inputs could materially affect
the option value estimated.

112 mn

B aE

(M RZZFFAF+A=-+—H &
AARBLAEZTERTER
o HARBRER - B &
“ETAF+ AT HBRES
ESRIFFBM B RE LS
2RERETHS -

(2) RABEFHEERE T2 L
Kotk d i o RS IR i 2 P AT ER
MAEBRKTFTHBEHAF &%
T zERESAERERBE -

(3) BTERERZATARRRG K
B A0.29/8 T °

(4) $/‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂ£$’§é2"$fﬁﬂ1§ﬁﬁ?ﬁ
?E £F M HY M E B AL G
HoZRBETRHZAFERE
BEFE - g AZEEWERD

T

B B AT E 0.317%7T
1188 0.29% 7T
TE AR i 76.0%
2 2 B ) 1.26%
TEHAR B % biis

(5) RS SRR LD B &
—E—FZAtBENMZFT——
FREAT=ZRAET2E=2EE
BREIUE TR -_ZZhF+—H
“tEOART B ERE -
FEREIR=F——F—ATHEAR
REARFERITES  REZ
AEAEE_ZTTEAFET A=
TOEETFHERESRE—
BB B BOLUL -

?ﬁiﬁkﬁﬁi"@%%ﬂﬂ%\‘*ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
[ DR A 2% ZEAIHL%ZH&ZA °
?E,HWEZFPEEEKA ABEFERE
Y SEOR R FTORTE © (B3 A E
PR EERRWEE A e B0
BRZAFTEAEATE -
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The following table discloses movements of the

share options of the Company during the year

ended 30th June, 2010.

Name of directors

£33

Mr. Raymond Hung
HEERE

Ms. Wong
int

Mr. Marcus Hung
R

Total #58

Date of share
options granted

BRERTES

21.10.2009
“EENE
+A=+-8

21.10.2009
ZEENE
tA=t-H

21.10.2009
“EENE
+A=+-AR

Exercisable period

A{TESE

21.10.2009 t0 20.10.2014
ZEFENFTACT-RE
“E-PEETACTH

21.10.2009 t0 20.10.2014
“EENETACT-RE
“F-METAZTA

21.10.2009 t0 20.10.2014
“EENFTA-+-8Z
“2-WE+AZ+H

No share-based payment expenses were paid
for the year ended 30th June, 2011 (2070:
HK$5,332,000) in relation to the share options
granted by the Company to the Company’s

directors. The share-based payments made in

2010 were also shown as part of the directors’

emoluments in note 12(a) to these financial

statements.

ATIRBEEARRANR - —F
FRA=ZTHLEFEZRBELZ

£ -

Granted during
the year and
Outstanding at  outstanding at  Exercise

1.7.2009 30.6.2010 price
RERKTR
R-2FNE R-2-%f%
tA-BAGE AASHBEAGE  AHE
HKS
B

- 22,700,000 0.29

- 13,330,000 0.29

- 8,400,000 0.29

- 44,430,000

NEEBAN-_ZE——F XA
“StTBELEFE(ZFE-—FF:
5,332,000/ ) W EAER B A
KAREFARRREBEART
WEMNT12(a)  ZRZE—TF
VAR 0 B B e SRR B BB
NESZHME -

HE113
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EZEHIE
The movement for the year in the Group’s net RARNFEARANEBRLEFIBE BT
deferred tax liabilities is as follows: REEEBHUOT ¢
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At beginning of the reporting period FEAR B R 29 4,269 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMB AR (i 37) (2,144) -
(Credit) Charge to profit or loss (FtA) HkiEm= (1,993) 4,269
Tax charge to other MIAX HEt AEAD
comprehensive income 2HE kxR 119 -
At the end of the reporting period  7E%IZRHIK 251 4,269
Recognised deferred tax liabilities at the end of the RAREARE RIELEHBEE
reporting period represent the following: N
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Fair value adjustments on KREWFEZ NP EAE
investment properties 251 4,269
Deferred tax liabilities FEEBIEEE 251 4,269
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE—ZT——F A A=1+THILFE

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

Deductible temporary differences AR BRI ER
Tax losses TigEE
At the end of the reporting period R FIFHHEIK

The deductible temporary differences of
HK$31,757,000 (2070: HK$NIL) represent deficit
on revaluation of overseas investment properties.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$212,328,000 (2010:
HK$212,328,000) available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax assets in respect
of these items have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises which fall due as follows:

—FRN

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

B_EERF

32.

(BREEEMSF)

ARERBELHREERE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g——-% _"T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TETT
31,757 -
212,328 212,328
244,085 212,328

AT 0 ET B 1 2= #31,757,00008
T(ZFE—FF - /) RRER
BIMEEMERNTRT « R
R AEEBERHARIBEERE
212,328,000/ 7T (ZE—FF :
212,328,000;% 7T ) ] f K 84 K
RIERTE 2 FIE - R A]TEA
BIR R AR, BELIEE SR
RERBEESHRELERIE
F0 755 E5 48 ] M PR R A5 8E o

BB AR
AEERREA
RIVRER - AEEpEEYE

ZATAEEEREROBEXNZR
KEEEHESAT -

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—B-—-% —T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FHBT
2,392 1,813
880 1,373
3,272 3,186
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE - ZT——F R A=THILFE

33.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its offices. The lease
term is ranging from 2 to 5 years (2070: 2 to 5
years). Rentals are fixed over the lease period
and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for future minimum
lease payments, which represent rentals receivable
by the Group for its investment properties, under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

33.

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years

—FR
FEEFRF

(PREERME)
b iohakes

The properties held have committed tenants with
rental fixed for term within 1 year (2070: 2 to 13

years).

11omm

REBONRELAEEETRET
BYMERN2EE - BHOEHH
MEERF (—F—FF - WHF
FLF) - HEREHHESE
EHITERKABR S MK LR
BE o

REENRHE
REBAHAA
RIFBHR - REBREREY

EZRWAES HRBET A EHEEL
SO RERSWADAT

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
346 3,162
- 5,826
- 1,605
346 10,593

BANREZHEDE (BTHE
&) PERBR—ER (ZF—
TE  FEEFZE) -
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34,

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34.
Capital expenditure in respect of BRNERESZE
the acquisition of investment MG REREB L
properties and property, 75%5%%\' % 5=
Bl - WIS

plant and equipment contracted for

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS N

Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE-—ZT——F - A=1THILFE

but not provided for in the

consolidated financial statements

— the Group
— share of a jointly controlled entity

— R&EE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

provided the following security for the banking

facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company as

set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

(a)

Pledge of investment properties of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$230,000,000
(2010: HK$220,000,000);

All monies earned by the above pledged
investment properties of the Group. During
the year, rental income of HK$1,146,677
was generated from these investment
properties (2010: HK$121,975);

Property insurance on the pledged
investment properties executed by the
Group in favour of the bank. At the end of
the reporting period, the property insurance
coverage was amounting to HK$9,350,000
(2010: HK$8,500,000); and

— FE(E — TR A AESI A A

35.

BRERE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g-——% —T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
19,727 19,203
31,288 31,288
51,015 50,491

EERH

RIUREAK - AEEREET A
SEY —WEATRITEEE
B - HEREBREN 27 - 2
ST

(a) HHREWHEZEREEE
/230,000,000 70 (=&
— & £ :220,000,000;%
JT)

(b) AEBAZEKFZEEY
¥R BWAG K
BHe RAFR ZH
EYMEHSWRASE S
1,146,677 L (ZE—F
F 1 121,975%7T)

(0 “BEBEMEZRBRIZ=ZK
H: RARE 2 &% H
fEl 49,350,000/ 7T (=
F — F 4F 1 8500000/
o) &k
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(d) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect
of all amounts owing by the subsidiary to
the bank under the facility.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties:

(a) Transaction

The Group had earned rental income
of approximately HK$1,435,000 (2070:
HK$140,000) from Ms. Wong, mother of
the Chairman, Mr. Marcus Hung, of the
Company for year ended 30th June, 2011.

The Group had paid consultancy fee
of approximately HK$370,000 (2070:
HK$Nil) to Mr. Raymond Hung, father of
the Chairman, Mr. Marcus Hung, of the
Company for the period from 6th April,
2011 to 30th June, 2011

118mm

36.

@) ADEZIAEGEER T
RYZ RARBHBE T
ARFZHBAT -

BEALRE
BRTEAGAMBEHRECHELZ

RS /BN REAFER - K
SEEBEATE NMIRS :

xt
Rl

(a)

ARARREE—_ZT——F
NA=ZTHASEREX
+ B HY 491,435,000/ 7T
(ZZFE—FF :140,000%
) MW A - EAXK
SEXFRERLENE
o

AREBH_-_T——FMA
NEBEZE——F A=
THEXZRMEBERBL
370,000 L (= &£ — F
F o) FokEERE
HAEKREEEFE’RERL
RIS ©
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2011 EZ&E

Remuneration to key management
personnel

The remuneration of members of key
management, other than directors as
disclosed in note 12 to these financial
statements was as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e hEMmEF
Discretionary bonus E’\]'IE?EZI
Retirement benefit scheme BRIRE R R

contributions

The remuneration of directors and other
key management personnel is determined
by the remuneration committee of the
Company having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

(b)

re MRS MR

_f——izxﬂ =tHIFE

TEEBAEME

BRTEMER2ZREZES
S MANFERZEEZEE

ABBEMT :

Group

REE
2011 2010
—g——-% _—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
890 581
- 47
12 12
902 640

RARFIZHFWNEE SR

FER ALz RENTS
BRAmMETES REME
EEEABZME -

HE119
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37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

37.

On 9th March 2011, the Company disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Applied Electronics
Limited (“AEL") and its subsidiary with a total

consideration of Renminbi 15 million.

The carrying values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities disposed of as at the date of disposal are

as follows:

Net assets disposed of:
Investment property

Release of exchange reserve

Release of deferred tax liabilities
(note 31)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Consideration, net of direct costs

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow arising from
disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration received

120mm

BEEHE
REME

iRt R OE 5 (& S
BRIBELEHIEAE
(K1:£31)
HEHBARZER

RE - HFREERA

AR
Re

HEH B L R AFE
RERAMELE :
EWEER 2 H(E

HEHE A F

E-E——F=ZANH ' ARQA]
HEENEFARLAR ([EHE
F) RENBARNEZEE 1T
A ERERARK15,000,000
T o

AHEAEERBENERRESR
HEBHNT -

Group

REE
2011 2010
—g——-% —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THETT

24,388 -

24 -

(2,144) -
(6,628) -

15,640 -

15,640 -

15,640 -
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10th December 2010, the Group issued 8%
convertible notes in the aggregate principle
amount of HK$41,760,000. The noteholders
may convert the whole or any part, in minimum
amount of HK$250,000 or integral multiples, of
the convertible notes into share at conversion
price of HK$0.24, subject to adjustments, with
the term of 3 years from 10th December 2010.
The Company has no intention to exercise its
rights to early redeem the whole or any part of
the convertible notes until the maturity date even
though the Company has the right at its sole
and absolute discretion at any time after 1 year
from 10th December 2010 to redeem the whole
or any principle amount, in minimum amount
of HK$250,000 or integral multiples, of the
convertible notes.

The fair value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component were determined at
issuance of the convertible notes. The fair value
of the liability component was calculated using an
annual market interest rate of 12.2%. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion component, has been included in the
convertible notes reserve.

38.

AR EE

FZZT—ZF+=ZA+H &%
EEHIT8% I MREBENBEE
541,760,000 L ZEF B
A H-ZE—FF+_A+BU
—FAH - TJERe LM
5 LAS K € 88250,0007%8 7T 3
HEREHLIBBREE  KRE
BFRR0.24% T Al THAE - R
BB ZRAIARAREEITHERE
FHe F#E [0 2 Pk T 56 2 Al 32
REE - BEARERKS
TE+-A+H—FEB2IME
MEEK —REHISEELD 2
HAEMAREERNESRE - H
&K € %8250,000/8 7T 8 H B &
fEE -

BEIHOEEZERIESHRTF
BEREFETURKRERRET -
AFENEERIEATFEHT
BHRERBI22%EE - Fltp &
BOEWEEN TR EEREE -
HRRBEEREOHOEE -
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The convertible notes recognised at the end of the

reporting period are calculated as follows:

Liability component
At beginning of the reporting period

Nominal value of convertible notes issued
Issue costs apportioned to

liability component
Equity component at the issue date

At the issue date

Interest expenses
Interest paid/payable

At the end of the reporting period

Equity component
At beginning of the reporting period
Convertible notes issued
Issue costs apportioned to
equity component

At the end of the reporting period

122 @l

BENS
e SR

ERTABRREERZEE

BITRADENAE
ﬁB paN
REITH R D

REITH

MERX
XAFE R

BRI R

BEBD

EIIE SR
AR IRET
BITRADHE B E D

IR IR S

RAFREAR AR EIA

mF :

Group and Company

AEERARQT

2011
—e——%
HK$’000
FiBR

2010

—E-TF

HK$'000
TAT

41,760

(1,108)
(3,962)

36,690

2,677
(1,857)

37,510

3,962

(116)

3,846
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39.

THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Other assets

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Other payables

Amounts due to directors
Amount due to a subsidiary

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

4= A

re MRS MR

Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE—ZT——F A A=1+THILFE

RRQ T AR R TR
2011 2010
—B——F —E—TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHxT FHET
FREBEE
B BB B ME RS 40 399,851 443,262
HEEE 16 1,045 -
400,896 443,262
REBEE
H b fE U SRR 21 1,175 248
RTEGF MRS 25 21,077 2,296
22,252 2,544
REBERE
RITBEX 204 -
HE bS58 26 2,033 707
B EEFIE 23 - 10,401
BLENENGIPA - IRE L] 40 205,143 229,107
207,380 240,215
BREBAE (185,128) (237,671)
BEE
215,768 205,591
BARRHE
f& A 29 8,383 8,389
EinaEMHFEES 39(a) 169,875 197,202
EREHm 178,258 205,591
kRBEE
A RRR =R 38 37,510 -
215,768 205,591
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Note: BtsE -
(a) Share premium and reserves (a) RO BERFEES
Company
£AF
Share Capital Convertible
Share options  redemption Capital note Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

TER
BteE BBREG ETEDER  ARRE  REER  ZRER ]
HKPO00  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'00O  HK$'000  HKS'000
TERL Tan TR TEL TEL TR TETL

At Tst July, 2009 RIZENF
tA-H 445 - 1,577 204,610 - (8,648) 207,984

Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (7,546) (7546)
Transactions with equity BREEAZRS

holders
Repurchase of own shares BERD - - 38 - - (8911) (8,568)
Fquity-settled share-based HERLERRA

payments EELARE - 5332 - - - - 233

Total transactions with equity BHEEEARFZEAHE

holders - 5332 343 - - (8,911) (3,236)

At 30th June, 2010 H-5-5F
~A=TH 445 5332 11,920 204,610 - (25,105) 197,202

Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (31,069) (31,069)
Transactions with equity BEEEAZRS

holders
Repurchase of own shares mER(H - - 6 - - (110) (104)
Issue of convertible notes BITERER - - - - 3,846 - 3,846
Transfer to retained profitson ~ BREZ T/

cancellation/forfeiture of RhEBzRERT

share options - (5332 - - - 5332 -

Total transactions with equity BHEEEARFZHAH
holders - (5332 6 - 3,846 5222 3,742

At 30th June, 2011 WZE—-F
ARZTA 445 - 11,926 204,610 3,846 (50,952) 169,875
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 &

The capital reserve of the Company represents
contributed surplus arising from the cancellation
of share premium account of the Company
pursuant to a special resolution passed by
the Company on 22nd February, 1999. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

Subject to the conditions mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph, the Company had the
following reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at the end of the reporting period:

Capital reserve N
Accumulated losses ZMEEE

T AA-TFHILFE

BRRBERIBREBERARFTR—N
ANFZRAZ+=ABBEz—H
FrRRE R A HA R ARG &
BREMEENBBRER - RER
FIE1981F QN a0k (BT
BHERAIHS IR TRE - MW
BEAMBEFEHEBETIER - AR
AAITSEIRIZA/RE - s
BHRERETOIR :

38

(1) AR REELZ
BEFHZA

e EEE

&3

) ARRBEEZFAHIREE
BEADRERERD %
1T B B B D 4 (B 2 48
B e

ERa LBRMINZIEET AR
BIRFIBRAR AT 0 R T AR Z
T

2011 2010
—g-—% ~—2-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT Tis
204,610 204,610
(50,952) (25,105)
153,658 179,505
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 40. B A BIRELR
Company
b YN

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost ELET ARG - EKAER 77,747 145,463
Amount due from subsidiaries JEU BB A R) 2 K18 387,070 530,184
464,817 675,647
Accumulated impairment losses REFPRERE (64,966) (232,385)
399,851 443,262
Amount due to a subsidiary S —E B A FRIA 205,143 229,107
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are ZRBELEEEW RENEET
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed BEIHl o R HAAS RAT  BRW

repayment term. At the end of the reporting U e nF AT E -

period, the carrying amounts of the amounts due
approximate their fair values.

126 EH



e P N
s

Applied Development Holdings Limited % H 2% &£ MAPR A 7 » Annual Report 2011 F5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IS E TR
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30th

June, 2011 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELRAE

Applied Enterprises Limited

Applied Hong Kong
Properties Limited

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited

ENRE%RERAR

AppliedLand Limited
ENERERARAR

Applied Mission Limited

Applied Secretaries Management
Limited

Applied Toys Limited

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation

EMA I

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
R
Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Nominal value

of issued and

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRIRBRRE/
HREREE

Ordinary HK$1,000
LER1,0008TT

Ordinary HK$500,000
EER500,00087T
Ordinary HK$574,630,911

EEIR574,630,91158 7T

Ordinary HK$2
LERAT

Ordinary HK$10,000

LRIR10,0008 7T

Ordinary HK$2
ERIET

Ordinary HK$2
LERET

EBHERATR-F——F <A
=+BZHENT -

Proportion of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
ARARERRIRE/
ERERLLA
Directly ~ Indirectly

B &

- 100%
- 100%
100% -
100% -
- 100%
100% -
- 100%

Principal activities

IRER

Investment holding

REER

Property, plant and
equipment holding
BENR  BERRME

Investment holding

REER

Property, plant and
equipment holding
and investment holding
BENE  BERRER
RERK

Property, plant and
equipment holding
BENE  RERRE

Providing administrative
and secretarial services

RETHRERE

Property, plant and
equipment holding
BENE  BERRE
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Proportion of

Place of Nominal value issued share

incorporation or of issued and capital/registered

establishment/ paid up share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
WEARER B BRARARRE/ ANRBEERORE/ IEEE

g%/ Keny EMEXEE ERERL A

Directly Indirectly
Bk &

Beachside Investments Limited BVI/Canada Ordinary US$1 - 100%  Property, plant and
ABENE/ e equipment holding
nex BEN%  BEREE
Data Pen Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Property, plant and
AERETEERAH BE LBk equipment holding

SEVER e

Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property holding
Company Limited (Note) HE HK$10,000,000 BENE
BRSHRER () BRAF & 710,000,000/
Playa Grande Development Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100%  Resort and property
Holdings Inc. E25 EER200ET development
ERIRNZER
Playa Grande Hot Spring Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100%  Resort and property
Development Holdings, Inc. REY EiBk200%T development
ERNRNEER
Severn Villa Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$7,545,000 - 100%  Property holding
Bl LiB1R7,545,00075 T BENE
Note: Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited Wiz BEEZREDZE (ORI GRA
is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established A2ERER T2 E)EEE
in the PRC. f7AE
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities AR 8 F 45 3 N F B (o] B
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time B S B AR Y EE A ARE
during the year. B2EBES -
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the LAB AR AESER AN AE
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, BEEEHEEENAGBETE
principally affected the results of the year or assets HE NG BERAE HHAT
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of all BEEMMB AT Z 5B TSR
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BANTLE

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Year ended 30th June, 2011 BE—ZT——F A A=1+THILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group
has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme
charged to profit or loss, as set out in note 9 to
these financial statements, represents contributions
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

PENDING LITIGATION

During January and February, 2011, Ms. Wong,
a former non-executive director of the Company
retired on 14th January, 2011, commenced actions
to bring the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company as intervening parties to the matrimonial
proceedings between Ms. Wong and Mr. Raymond
Hung, the former managing director of the
Company resigned on 6th April, 2011.

41.

42,

RIRER G

M-TETFE+-_A—H#E K
SECRMEEMEEREEM
ABFIERNELETE ([REDE
2l]) o BB FT & JHR SR B 1
NEEFFEHEFIR A HI M AES
EE R RESECEE
TEAEEZEESFH BB
XAABEBEZESEE - RiE®
HEertgl 2R BEERHEES
BIRBOIETE 2 E R M BIEL T
B - AEBRARESFTEZ
W—EEAREFEELREZ
T BMEEWME 2 HERABE
IR AR R ENF 2 3R -

sRAA R E 8 RN EAKAE R
AR A W ek R IO BRI A 510 M R
9 RIAKEZEEETE R
FEE 2 L R AE S S -

R
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T4t R-B——F—F+m
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43.

B BREM T

On 7th July, 2011, Ms. Wong lodged a statement
of claim to the High Court of the Hong Kong
“High Court”)
against the Company and the subsidiary for

Special Administrative Region (the

claiming a declaration that certain investment
properties, which have been included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, are actually held
by the subsidiary as a trustee for Ms. Wong and an
order for the taking of accounts or quantification of
equitable compensation amongst certain involved
parties (the
the Group’s lawyers, the amount involved cannot

“Claims”). According to advices from

be quantified at this stage but should include
the value of the investment properties and any
equitable compensation which the High Court may
ultimately find the parties to be liable, if any.

On 5th August, 2011,
subsidiary filed defence and counterclaims

the Company and the

against Ms. Wong for vacant possession of those
investment properties and unpaid licence fees
for remaining at the investment properties until
the recovery of possession of the investment
properties by the Company and the subsidiary (the
“Counterclaims”).

The Claims and the Counterclaims have been
consolidated pursuant to a court order and fixed
for hearing in October, 2011.

The directors have sought legal advices from the
Group’s lawyers and are of the view that the Group
has proper and valid defences to Ms. Wong’s claim
and therefore no provision for the Claims and the
related interests and costs is considered necessary.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has disposed of certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$18 million for a
consideration of approximately HK$16 million and
recorded a loss on disposal of approximately HK$2
million.
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RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 30th June,

BEAA=THLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“ET+E ZEENE ZETNE 2§ CZB--%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TiEx TR THT TER

Continuing operations HESEER

Turnover g 6,785 5,876 5,058 4,847 4,649
Profit (Loss) before taxation BEanEF (BR) 111,269 17,472 (11,810) 51,868 (135,478)
Tax credit (charge) MIEE R ) 59 432 - (4,295) 1,993

Profit (Loss) for the year from SELB R
continuing operations FERT (BE) 111,328 17,904 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485)

Discontinued operations BRILER

Loss for the year BRILEBRFE
from discontinued operations 518 (2,013) (81) - - -
Profit (Loss) for the year EEHA (BB) 109,315 17,823 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485)
Attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company ~ RAFREFAE A 110,173 17,823 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485)
Minority interests DYRFEER (858) - - - -
109,315 17,823 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30th June,
RAA=+H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TELF  —ZTN\F ZETHhF —ET-TF ZB—-f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET FEL TER
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 672,230 592,197 597,480 667,725 581,666
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfEBE (137,606) (44,958) (62,733) (79,980) (122,309)
534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745 459,357
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARRIERHEEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF ity
THE COMPANY 534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745 459,357

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  FE#Efkf% & - - - - -

534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745 459,357
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Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at AEBR -_E—FA=1HEH
30th June, 2011 are as follows: ZIREEFIBTENNAOT

Effective

Name/location Lease expiry Type % held
ERER

E B HAERES fic) Bt

Hong Kong BB

Flat A on 1st Floor, BB 2070

Flat B on 1st Floor, 2nd Floor, 1L TE B D38 357 T THF

3rd Floor, the roof and carpark MHENRIEF AR

1,2,3,4,5and 7 Severn Villa, 118 218 3EBE -

3 Severn Road, The Peak, FakfE8EMig1 23

Hong Kong 4 5K7%

The People’s Republic of China hEARKLNE

(excluding Hong Kong) (TBESRSB)

Part of Level 1 & EBERA 2042 C 100

whole floor of Level 2, E/mB& N

No. 42, Zhan Qian Road, UEATEEA25R

Zi Pian B Qu, —BHHR_EEE

Guangdong Province

Canada PN

#1503-5933 Cooney Freehold R 100

Road, KAERE
City of Richmond,
Province of British

Columbia,
Canada
Particulars of properties held for development (as AEER_T——FHA=THEER
investment properties) by the Group at 30th June, 2011 R’ (KNAKREME) 2WEFBHIN
are as follows: Nk
Lease Gross  Effective Stage of Anticipated
Name/location expiry Type site area % held  completion completion
ik Bt BEER

2-V8 1 JERE 0 L<bid HfE BAt BIRE BRI
Panama E25
Lots 1807, 4920, 4921, 4923, Freehold R/C 53.3 million 100 Under N/A

4924, 4935, 4936, 4942, KERE Sq. ft development i H

4943, 4944, 4945, 6921, 53,300,000 BKREM

20435, 33248, 35039, IR

41583, 41619 together with

all beach front property

known as Playa Grande in

Boca Chica, District of

San Lorenzo, Province

of Chiriqui, Panama
Type of properties: R - residential MEER R-E%E

C - commercial C—BA
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